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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET* CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271.9544 1-80(^52-3345 ExL 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Acceu: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.oh.gov

May 2. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend an existing
contract wrth the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (VC#155510-
8001), Concord, NH, to continue providing services for the prevention and mrtigation of Adverse
Childhood Experiences, by increasing the price limitation by $360,000 from $1,080,000 to
$1,440,000 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2022, to June 30.2023, effective
July 1, 2022 or upon Gcvemor and Council approval, whichever is later. 7% Federal Funds. 93%
Other Funds (Governor's Commission Funds).

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 18, 2019 (Item #18), and amended on April 8, 2020, (Item #15), and most recently
amended on June 16, 2021, (Item #32).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2023, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEAL TH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc
92058502

$360,000 $0 $360,000

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc
92058502

$360,000 $0 $360,000

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc
92058502

$360,000 $0 $360,000

2023 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc
92058502

$0 $260,000 $260,000

Subtotal $1,080,000 $260,000 $1,340,000

77k Dtportmini of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-92.920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, SABG ADDITIONAL

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

fDecreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585

Grants for

Public Asst

and Relief

92059502

$0 $100,000 $100,000

Subtotal $0 $100,000 $100,000

Total $1,080,000 $360,000 1,440,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to continue programming and strategies to support children
and their families who have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs), including,
being victims of or otherwise exposed to trauma. The Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and available renewal options in response to a funding directive from
the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs. In accordance with RSA 12-J, the
Department carries out the administrative functions of the Commission.

Approximately 6375 individuals will be served July 1, 2022, through June 30,2023.

The Contractor will continue to subcontract with 12 Domestic and Sexual Violence Crisis

Centers to provide evidence-based or evidence-informed programs and practices that mitigate
the impact of ACEs on children, which have been shown to have a significant impact on future
victimization and perpetration of violence and lifelong health implications. Individuals experiencing
adverse experiences are also at a significantly higher risk for developing substance use disorders
and experiencing depression and/or anxiety.

These services and programs provide support for children up to 18 years of age who have
witnessed or been victims of trauma, as well as their families and caregivers. The types of
supports offered include child advocacy, parent-child mentors, peer mentoring, child and parent
therapy, child and parent education, support groups, curriculum based programs, and child
enrichment and development programming.

To date, the CADSV has served 6,252 children through child advocacy services and
prevention education sessions. CADSV has strategically developed partnerships to strengthen
capacity and build sustainability. This past year, one member agency partnered with the Concord
School District to provide on-site sen/ices with the hopes of expanding to more school districts.
Additionally, CADSV artd its member agencies are building partnerships with organizations
already senring children to increase access and awareness of CADSV services this includes work
with the Adverse Childhood Experiences Response Team mobile units in Manchester and
Nashua.

The services made available through this contract include staff in the 12 Domestic and
Sexual Violence Crisis Centers to advocate for and support children and youth who have
witnessed traumatic events, including overdoses. Research has shown that preventing and/or
mitigating ACEs can improve future social and health outcomes. Including:
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•  Increasing coping skills to address depression and/or anxiety;

Increasing awareness of and access to sen/ices and supports to prevent or reduce ACEs;
and

•  Increasing child-parent/caregiver bonding.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, children with ACEs and their
families may not receive adequate support, advocacy, and education to overcome those
experiences which may lead to increased incidences of substance misuse, depression, anxiety
and other behavioral health issues.

Area served: Statewide

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 36AF6CF2-7396-4D5A-9019-A89094970DE0

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers
contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18. 2019, (Item #18), as amended on April 8, 2020, (Item #15), and as amended on June
16, 2021, (Item #32), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,440,000

3. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 8 to read:

8. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
dhhs.lnvoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.aov. or Invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Add Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3 Budget, SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

G-os
New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

5/4/2022
SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, subject to Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/4/2022

Date

DoeuSignad by:

X S. ftiy
pctBO<c<ma,i

Name:

Title: Director

5/4/2022

Date

New Hampshire Coalition of Domestic and Sexual Violence
OocuSigntd by:

h,. Sdi/tWf
:2EceDa?Dcxii3.

Name'^-y" schoiiett
Title: Executive Director

New Hampshire Coalition of
Domestic and Sexual Violence

SS-2020-BOAS-05-ADVER-01 -AOS

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OoeuStgntd by:Uocu»igr>to oy:

5/6/2022

Date Narnerf^Wn cuarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

New Hampshire Coalition of
Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.2

SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3 Budget
SFY2023

SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for eech budget period.

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Budget Request for: Prevention & Mitigation of ACES

Budget Period July 1, 2022 through June 30. 2023 (SFY23)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0 00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS.

1. Salarv& Wages
$0

2. Fringe Benefits $0

3. Consultants
$0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacv $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel
$0

7. Software $0

8. fa) Other - Marketina/Communications $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Traininq $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) .  . $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $360,000

Total Direct Costs $360,000

Total Indirect Costs ■  - $0

TOTAL $360,000

Contractor Initials

OS

IS

Page 1 of 1 Date

5/4/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on April 30. 1981. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 00057S5697

tarn

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this I Ith day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate
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CERTIRCATE OF AUTHORTrY

1, Amv VorenbergL hereby certify ̂ ak
(Name of the elected OfRcer of the CorporatioiVLLC: canriot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Chairperson/OfTu^r of the NH CoalKipn Against ppmestic and Sexual Violence .
(Coipdration'AiLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting ipf the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 28.2021, at whi^ a quorum of the birecto^shareholders weire present and voting.

(Date)" " "

VOTED: That _Lyn Schpllett, Executive.pirector.
,^,(Name;andrTltle',6fbo'htrac^^^ .

is duly authorized on twhalf of the NH Coaliton Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC) ...• *• •_

agreement wi^. the State of New.Harnpshjre and any df its agendesjor departments ar>d turner is authorirod to
exwute any and al! insWi^ntsV and any am^
mcditotk^s thereto,'whichirayjntii^'erju!^^^

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote haC hot been fended or repealed arid remains in full force and effect as of the
date of ̂ e c6n^'ct/cpntiact;amdnd^n^^ certificate is'^a^chedicT^ remains valid for
thirty (30) days troifnTthe datejj^.thjS'Ce I furttierdertify that it is understood that the ̂ te of
New Harhpshire v^rill .rely.^;this that die (M/s6h(s) above .cunentiy.occupy the
p6s.itioh(s) indicated and thalttVey feve:^hjll auth^p^^ extent that'-lherB are any
lirhits ori audipnty of any list^ irxlM to bind thd cof^ratioh in con^^'wito^ of New'Ham^hlre,
^1 such limitatas'^a^^

Dated: April 6, 2022 Y^CSjl.
Signature0f Elected OfTicer
Name: Amy Vorenberg

Rev. Q3I2A/20
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/XCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

04/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 MeadowbrookLane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*''^ Eleanor Splnazzola
<603)233-2791 (603)293-7188

ADMESS- El6anorsplnazzola@eslnsurance.net
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A
Great American insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

NH Coalition Against Domestic arvl Sexual Violence. DBA: NHCADSV

PO Box 353

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B Liberty Mutual Agency Corporation

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2022 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TnSr
LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR

ms POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

(MM/DO/YYYYl
policy EXP
tMM/00/YYYY> LIMITS.

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TD RENTED
PREMISES (EaoccufTWcO

MAC 5464236 21 05/15/2022 05/15/2023

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

1,000.000

100,000

5.000

1.000.000

2.000.000

2.000.000

AUT0M08ILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acdcix^)

$ 100.000

BODILY INJURY (Par paraon]

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

MAC 5464236 21 05/15/2022 05/15/2023 BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accWanO

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1.000.000

UMB8234007-14 05/15/2022 05/15/2023
AGGREGATE

1.000.000

DED X RETENTION S ''0-090
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETORffMRTNER/EXECUTIVE

OPPICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yas. daacflba urvdar
DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTM-
ER

H WC5-31S-604577-012 05/15/2022 05/15/2023
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

500.000

E.L, DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Ramarfct Schedule, may be atUchad If more apaca l» required)

CERTtFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Vii.iv«\Pi4LLijy_

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NHCADSVVision and Mission

Vision

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and
just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected
by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Note: The language below will be used in grant applications and other documents to
provide further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent
community-based member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working
together to;

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their

responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April 2011

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence • PO Box 353 • Concord, NH 03302 • 603.224.8893

iKvin
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST

DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2021 and 2020

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS
June 30, 2021
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N. STATE STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE03301

MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX # (603) 226-3532 MEMBER OFTHE PRIVATE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2021 and the related statement of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2021 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

-1-
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Report CD Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2020
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated February 23, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited

financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 22,
2021, on our consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

DRAFT

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 22, 2021

-2-
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t

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,2021 and June 30,2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Certificates of Deposit, Short-Term

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

2021

184,123

133,856

226,062

2,088,047

23,904

2,655,992

2020

48,920

89,537

145,968

1,968,260

22,979

2,275,664

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment

Leasehold Improvements

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property and Equipment, Net

14,654

61,072

75,726

(24,170)

51,556

14,654

37,719

52,373

(15,887)

36,486

OTHER ASSETS

Long-term Investments

Certificates of Deposit, Long-Term

Security Deposit

Total Other Assets

454,367

68,057

6.213

528,637

347,689

207,016

6,213

560,918

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

3,236,185 2,873,068

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

1,692,068

72,402

1,764,470

1,520,941

79,223

1,600,164

OTHER LIABILITIES

SBA Paycheck Protection Program Loan 175,000

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

1,337,859

133,856

1,471,715

1,008,367

89,537

1,097,904

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 3,236,185 2,873,068

Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 36AF6CF2-7396-4D5A-9019-A89094970DE0

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30,2021, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30,2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2021 2020

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Grant Revenue $  10,134,624 $  125,000 $  10,259,624 $ 9,457,727

Contributions 147,285 - 147,285 281,953

Donated Services 1,496 - 1,496 66,758

Interest Income 6,910 - 6,910 6,156

Miscellaneous Income 21,640 - 21,640 45,055

Total Contributions and Support 10,311,955 125,000 10,436,955 9,857,649

Investment Dividends 10,397 10,397 7,763

Unrealized and Realized Gain on Investments 78,134 - 78,134 10,603

Investment Fees (1,911) - (1,911) (1,272)

Net Investment Gains and Earnings 86,620 - 86,620 17,094

Total Support and Revenue 10,398,575 125,000 10,523,575 9,874,743

Net Assets Released from Donor

Imposed Restrictions 80,681 (80,681) - -

EXPENSES

Program Services 10,037,272 - 10,037,272 9,650,552

Management and General 93,744 - 93,744 114,833

Fundraising 18,748 - 18,748 20,982

Total Expenses 10,149,764 - 10,149,764 9,786,367

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 329,492 44,319 373,811 88,376

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,008,367 89,537 1,097,904 1,009,528

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  1,337,859 $  133,856 $  1,471,715 $  1,097,904

Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 36AF6CF2.7396-4O5A-9019-A89094970DE0

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30,2021

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2020
See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Services & General Fundralsing 2021 2020

Salaries $  1,116,694 $  59,399 $  11,880 $  1,187,973 $  1,147,959

Payroll taxes 89,371 4,754 951 95,076 93,379

Health and Dental Insurance 120,054 6,386 1,277 127,717 102,596

Other Employee Benefits 33,627 1,789 358 35,774 40,773

Professional Services 100,557 5,349 1,070 106,976 141,765

Contract/Grant Services 7,616,005 - - 7,616,005 6,906,436

Survivor Grants 127,032 - -
127,032 562,698

Rental Assistance 182,398 - - 182.398 150,967

Memberships 5,635 300 60 5,995 5,540

Publications 1,671 89 18 1,778 1,422

Advertising/Public Awareness 2,956 157 31 3,144 5,995

Copying 3,419 182 36 3,637 3,960

Office Supplies 46,662 2,482 496 49,640 38,804

Postage 3,362 179 36 3,577 4,643

Printing 3,619 193 39 3,851 2,074

Equipment & Moving 1,013 54 11 1,078 1,185

Maintenance & Repair 40,901 2,176 435 43,512 50,658

Rent Expense 83,230 4,427 885 88,542 85,400

Parking 7,332 390 78 7,800 8,370

Insurance 9,020 480 96 9,596 6,530

Staff Development 12,894 686 137 13,717 14,083

Travel 1,412 75 15 1,502 44,792

Telephone 51,167 2,722 544 54,433 37,458

Technology 159,137 - - 159,137 88,147

Miscellaneous Expense 4,053 214 43 4,310 -

AVAP Miscellaneous Expense - -
- - 39,117

AVAP Member Training/Education 604 -
-

604 2,102

Direct Training 46,029 - -
46,029 44,919

Community Education 143,718 - -
143,718 136,462

Depreciation Expense 7,785 414 83 8,282 6,393

Accounting Fees 15,915 847 169 16,931 13,151

Federal Taxes Expense (Benefit) ■ - - - (1,411)

Total Expenses $  10,037,272 $  93,744 $  18,748 S  10,149,764 $  9,786367

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets $ 373,811 $ 88,376

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation 8,282 6,393
Net Gain on Investments (86,620) (17,094)

SBA Payroll Protection Program Loan Forgiveness (175,000)

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable (119,787) (86,615)

Prepaid Expenses (925) (3,063)
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 171,127 (66,552)

Accrued Expenses (6,820) (24,441)

Federal Taxes Payable ^ (1.428)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITES 164,068 (104,424)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Property and Equipment (23,353) (10,000)
Net (Purchase) Maturity of Certificates of Deposit 58,865 (43,122)
Proceeds on Sales of Investments - 82,264

Purchases of Investments (20,058) (412,859)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 15,454 (383,717)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds from SBA Payroll Protection Program Loan ^ 175,000
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES - 175,000

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 179,522 (313,141)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 138,457 451.598

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR $ 317,979 $ 138,457

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Donated Services S 1,496 $ 66,758

Notes to Financial Statements
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i>ew nampsnire coaiiiion Againsi Lvomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 12-member agency crisis centers that
in turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking.
Twelve of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their
own mission, structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives
96% of its funding from federal and state agencies and less than 1% from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities
through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence
and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 12 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual

violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The
Coalition supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and
coordinating organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide
funding for its member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families.
Coalition staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child
advocacy centers to assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual
violence, and for their parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions
to advocate for effective responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to
draft legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative
session. The Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each legislative
session. These bills address a wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family
law; divorce and child custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy
and personal information; healthcare; and economic justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.
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i>ew nampsnire uoaimon Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout
New Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to
advance effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the
causes and effects of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the
state. The Coalition has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public.
The following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual
violence and stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) founded in 1994 is a program of the Coalition that
ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking throughout
New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service program that offers opportunities to
Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to serve their country through national
service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing services to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are
trained in the AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they
use in one-on-one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic
budgeting to checking a credit report. AVAP members also provide information and facilitate referrals to
local financial and housing services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting
medical/forensic examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution.
Coalition staff are responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals
across the state to ensure that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic
exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the
perpetration of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist
Program was built on the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain
in a safe household with a non-violent parent.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Years CndedJune 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention
Specialists (FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are co-located at local
DCYF District Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service
workers while providing advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This
program results in more effective assistance to victims through the development of interventions that
recognize the adult victim's need for support and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for
children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to the Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of
net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising
contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or
permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the
purpose of the restriction is accomplished.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All
other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Contributed Services

During the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the value of contributed services relating to printing,
community education, direct training and professional fees were $1,496 and $83,144, respectively.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition;
these amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria for
recognition as contributed services has not been met.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services,
and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020 in the amounts of $58,904 and $70,244, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on their
relationship to those activities. Those expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses and occupancy
costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on square footage. Payroll and payroll related expenses are
based on estimates of time and effort. Other cost allocations are based on the relationship between the
expenditure and the activities benefited.

Property and Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for
repairs, maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are
expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment
are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions
without donor restriction unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire
property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when
the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies net
assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment
are depreciated using the straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $8,282
and $6,393, respectively.
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Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinued)

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(c) (3) ofthe Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax
positions of the Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of
whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows the guidance of
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income
taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash
equivalents reported within the statement of financial position to the sum of the corresponding amounts
within the statement of cash flows as of June 30:

2021 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents $184,123 $ 48,920
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 133.856 89.537
Total $317.979

Certificates of Deposit

Certificates of deposit are reported on the accompanying statement of financial position. The certificates
bear interest ranging from 1.50% to 3.50% as of June 30, 2021. Maturities range from six months to four
years.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title 1, New Hampshire, The State and Its Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entit>' engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $ 16,022 and $3,450 at June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition
may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount. Management does not
believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30,2021 and 2020
the Coalition had uninsured cash balances of $92,848 and $85,316, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Coalition follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense at June 30,2021 and 2020 was $3,144 and $5,995 respectively.
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Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinuedl

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by
net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30,2020, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, grants receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2021 and 2020, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. Other financial instruments
held at year-end are investments, which are stated at fair value.

Reclassifications

Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 22, 2021, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

Newlv Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In the year ended June 30, 2021 the Coalition adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)—Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The FASB issued this ASU to
clarify and improve the scope and the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions
made. The amendments in this ASU should assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be
accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit
Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a
contribution is conditional. Analysis of the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in
the way the Coalition recognizes revenue and, therefore, no changes to the previously issued audited
financial statements (presented in these financial statements as comparative financial information) were
required on a retrospective basis. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

In the year ended June 30,2021 the Coalition adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue Recognition (Topic 606)—Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. This ASU introduces a new five-step revenue recognition model in which an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Analysis of the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the Coalition
recognizes revenue and, therefore, no changes to the previously issued audited financial statements
(presented in these financial statements as comparative financial information) were required on a
retrospective basis. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

in February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a lessee
will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months.
Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows
arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease.
However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the statement of
financial position—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the statement of
financial position. This standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2021.

NOTE B - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively,
the net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2021 2020

- $ 24,615

20,000 -

20,000 -

. 19,200

29,751 5,117

40,574 20,574

23.531 20.031

Housing Assistance to Survivors
Operations Support
Coalition Services

Direct Support to Survivors
Technology Improvement
Human Trafficking Services
Economic Support to Survivors

Total

Net assets in the amount of $80,681 and $674,468 were released from donor restrictions by incurring
expenses satisfying the restricted purpose during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE C - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1, 2018,
expiring in 2028. Annual rent was $74,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the
lease term. Annual parking was $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2022 $ 99,611

2023 103,011
2024 106,546

2025 110,223

2026 114,635

Thereafter 99.138

Total ^6T3.164

Rent expense related to the lease was $88,542 and $85,400 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
respectively. Rent paid for parking spaces totaled $7,800 during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, and are included in parking expense on the statement of functional expenses.
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NOTE D - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
totaled $23,089 and $25,850, respectively.

NOTE E - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a
recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Quoted Prices

In Active Markets

For Identical Assets

fLevel n

$ 454,367
294.119

S 748.486

2021

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

Fair Value

$  454,367

294.119

3= 748.486

2020

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

$ 347,689
352.984

$ 700.673

$ 347,689

352.984

700.673

Fair values for investments were determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions.

NOTE F - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the
following as of June 30:

Fund for Grace

Operating Reserve

2021

56,918
148.665

2020

62,762

148.665

NOTE G - LIQUIDITY & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support
is held for the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial
assets that could be readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

2021 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 317,979 $  138,457

Certificates of deposit, short-term 226,062 145,968

Grants Receivable, net of
Grants Payable 395,979 447,319

Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction n33.856i r89.537i

$ 806.164 $ 642.207
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair-market value. Investments at June 30, 2021 and
2020 are composed of the following:

2021 - 2020

Cost Market Cost Market

Equity Mutual Funds Ii  84,225 $  112,698 $  70,241 $  72,830

Mutual Funds 135,363 134,725 121,377 123,897

Money Market 22,559 22,559 24,488 24,488

Exchange traded funds 125,635 184,385 .121,479 126,474

Total ;i  367,782 $ 454,367 $  337,585 $  347,689

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820-10 Fo/r Value Measurements defines fair value,
requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair
value measurements based on the observable Inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It
prioritizes the inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurement) and the
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

Under Topic 820-10, the three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Coalition has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are either directly
or indirectly observable for the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

All investments are measured at Level I. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets in active markets.

The individual investments contain net assets without donor restrictions. Investments in marketable equity
securities and marketable debt securities are carried at fair market value determined by "quoted market
prices" per unit (share) as of the statement of financial position date. All other investments are stated at
cost. Donated investments are recorded at the mean of the high and low price as of the date of receipt.
Gains and losses on investments are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions, unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Spending Policv

Each fiscal year the Coalition is authorized to withdraw up to 5% of the total market value of the total
portfolio of the Fund. The amount available to be withdrawn in a fiscal year will be up to 5% of the Fund
market value as of the last business day of the fiscal third quarter of the preceding fiscal year. Only with the
approval of a majority vote of the Board of Directors, present at a meeting duly called for such purpose,
may the Coalition exceed the 5% spending cap.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS, (continued)

Investment Return Objectives. Risk Parameters and Strategies

The Coalition Board of Directors is responsible for developing policies that govern investment of the assets
of the Coalition. The purpose of the following Investment Policy, which is to be reviewed annually by the
Finance Committee of the Coalition are to:

Establish the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and eligible securities relating to investments
owned or controlled by the Coalition through a third-party investment advisor.

Identify the criteria against which the investment performance of the Coalition's investments will be
measured.

Communicate the objectives to the Board of Directors, investment managers and funding sources that
may have involvement.

Serve as a review document to guide the ongoing oversight of the management of the Coalition's
investments.

NOTE I - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20,2022 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 3.75% and 4.75% as of June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE J - SEA PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

On April 23, 2020 the Coalition received approval of a loan from The U.S. Small Business Administration
as part of the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of $175,000. This loan called for interest fixed at
1%. No payments were required for six months from the date of the loan. This note was to mature two
years from the date of first disbursement of the loan.

The loan was be forgiven in full under the provisions of Section 1106 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act) (P.L. 116-136) on February 26, 2021. The revenue is included in
grant revenue in the statement of activities and changes in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE K - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - COVlD-19

As a result of the spread of the COVlD-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact ftiture financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is unknown and
cannot be estimated at the present time.
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KOWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MEMBER

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N, STATE STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400

Fax #(603) 226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE

COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 22, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

DRAFT

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 22, 2021
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MEMBER

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N, STATE STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE03301

TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
FAX #(603) 226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE

COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor^s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

DRAFT

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 22, 2021
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Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2021

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported
in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major program were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.671

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Federal CFDA/ Pass-Through
Assistance Entity Passed

Listing Identifying Through to Federal

Program Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DeDartment of Housina and Urban Development:

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS:
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 102-500731 $  207,105 $  218,398

U.S. Denartment of Justice;

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000 16.556 - 257,014

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:
VAWA, SASP 16.017 2020SASP01 364,216 364,216

OVC Human TrafTicking 16.320 - 77,476

VOCA, Technology Improvement 16.575 - 67,234

YOGA, Data Projects Coordinator 16.575 - 20,314

VOCA, SA 16.575 2018VOC49 6,163 175,099

VOCA, CA 16.575 2018VOC47 - 14,775

VOCA, DV 16.575 2018VOC48 59,283 61,769

VOCA, Competitive 16.575 2021VOC72 118,891 131,891

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts 16.575 2021VOC31 2,912,419 3,362,762

VOCA, Amendment 16.575 2021VOC76 62,500 62,500

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2020VAW16 - 151,526

Total Pass-Through Programs 3,523,472 4,489,562

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,523,472 4,746,576

US Department of the Trea.sur>':

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!

Covid-19: AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program Cares Act 21.019
-

35,874

U.S. Deoartment of Health and Human Services:

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.591 - 267,818

Direct Program • Family Violence Prevention Services Act - Covid-]9 93.591 - 72,564

Subtotal - 340,382

Pass-Through Programs from Slate ofNH Department of HHS:

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 201,036 281,155

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 155510 BOOl 1,204.343 1,228,093

Family Violence Prevention Services Act - Covid-]9 93.671 155510 BOOl 118,879 118,879

Subtotal 1,323,222 1,346.972

Total Pass-Through Programs 1,524,258 1,628,127

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &. HUMAN SERVICES 1,524,258 1,968,509

Corporation for National A Communitv Services;

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 - 229,003

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 5,254,835 $ 7,198,360
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Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets, or cash flows of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost
Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Federal CFDA/

Program Title Assistance Listing # Amount Provided

Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.267 $ 207,105

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 364,216

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 3,159,256

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 201,036

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 1.323.222

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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S. Joi Smith

SKILLS SUMMARY:

Highly creative and enthusiastic community builder
Excellent communication and organizational skills
Aptitude for technology and innovation
Activist and passionate participant in the arts community

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY:

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence - Program Director August 2020 - Present
Concord, NH

Provide leadership and oversight in the development and administration of member services, training and technical assistance,
statewide programs and other special projects of the NHCADSV in line with its mission, strategic plan and community needs.
Recruit, train and supervise program staff, as they implement and sustain initiatives of the NHCADSV. Oversee training and
technical assistance efforts of the NHCADSV. Develop and Implement evaluation tools for statewide programs and special
projects. Provide high level management and support to the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAR.) Assist with grant
writing in response to federal, state, and private funding opportunities. Serve as liaison to the NHCADSV's 13 member programs
by identifying needed resources and training to improve direct service delivery. Serve on statewide committees to assist in the
improvement of multi-disciplinary response to domestic violence, sexual violence, stalking and human trafficking.

HAVEN - Manager of Client Services July 2015 - August 2020
Portsmouth, NH

Manage HAVEN client services program and supervise direct service staff. Serves as the Agency's AmeriCorps Victim Assistance
Program Advocate Coordinator and Internship Coordinator. Develop, organize and facilitate in-service and ongoing training
programs for all direct service staff, interns and volunteers. Maintain and continually develop an on-going effective client
services program using best practices for survivors of domestic and sexual violence through a 24 - hour hotline, office walk-ins,
and accompaniments to hospitals, police stations, courts and child advocacy centers. Engage and maintain excellent
relationships with victim service community partners both at the local and state level such as the NH State Attorney General's
office, NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence (NHCADSV), Rockingham & Strafford NH County Prosecutors and child
advocacy centers (CAC's), NH Department of Child, Youth and Family Services (DCYF), and local Law Enforcement, pro-bono
attorney programs, and district courts.

Sexual Assault Support Services (SASS) September 2011 - July 2015
Volunteer Advocate (Sept. 2011 - July 2012) | Night Supervisor (July 2012- Sept.2013) j Client Services Coordinator (Sept. 2013 - July 2015)
Portsmouth, NH

Provide supportive services and referrals to victims and survivors of sexual violence through the 24 - hour hotline, hospital and
police accompaniments and peer support groups. Schedule and coordinate SASS's 24-hour services coverage. Provide
supervision to AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program members, direct service staff and volunteer advocates. Develop and
Implement training and programming for trauma-informed sexual assault/abuse supportive services.

COMMITTEES & BOARDS SERVED:

NH Child Abuse & Neglect Task Force 2020 - Present
NH Child Fatality Review Committee 2020 • Present
NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force 2017 - Present
NH Incapacitated & Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review Committee 2020 - Present
NH Lethality Assessment Program (LAP) Steering Committee 2018 - Present
NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Advisory Board 2017 • Present
NH Wellness & Primary Prevention Council 2020- Present
Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County MDT Advisory Board 2019 - 2020
Strafford County Child Advocacy Center Advisory Board 2017 - 2020
Strafford County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2016 - 2020
Rockingham County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2015 - 2020

OTHER RELATED EXPERIENCE:
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S. Joi Smith

Back Alley Productions - Foundcr/Dircctor/Producer 2008 - Present
A cutting-edge, independent theater company focused on executing a clear, strong vision for quality theater programs, and
maintaining inclusivity, integrity and respect for aii involved with each production.

Players' Ring Board of Director • Board Member/Producer Ua\sonlMarketing Chair 2013 - 2019
Portsmouth, NH

A non-profit, groundbreaking, black box theater whose mission is to provide an environment where artists can thrive, grow,
take risks and make daring choices. Responsible for training, coordinating, scheduling, supporting and mentoring
more than 25 production companies throughout the season, as well as planning and executing any fundraising efforts and
events for the theater. Manage and develop content for marketing, social media, and bi-weekly newsletters promoting each
production and event. Organize and facilitate community volunteer projects aimed at improving the theater space.

V-Day Portsmouth NH/V-Day Rochester NH/One Billion Rising - OrganJzcr/Produccr/Dlrector 2001-2015
Organizing, producing and directing a yearly event focused on raising awareness and funds to end violence against women.
Organizing all aspects of these events, from casting, scheduling, staging, and directing, to securing donations and local
community support and creating content for and managing marketing and promotion of events. Fostering collaboration with
local beneficiaries and other community V-Day organizers, to cross-promote causes and events, and ensure consistent
messaging. Responsible for completing and submitting required reports and reconciling budgets at the end of each event.

ADDITIONAL SKILLS:

Trainings &. Group Facilitation: Experienced in developing and facilitating on-going required training for staff, community
partner professionals, as well as developing and facilitating survivor support groups.
Technology: Proficient in both MAC and PC platforms. Expertise in Microsoft Office programs 81 Office 365, Adobe Acrobat,
Adobe Photoshop, QuickBooks, and online project management and file share systems such as Freedcamp, Basecamp and
Dropbox, as well as Google docs.
Marketing: Additional expertise 8t aptitude for website design, social media management and email marketing. Skilled at
copywriting, editing and basic graphic design.

EDUCATION:

Plymouth Regional High School 1995

AWARDS 81 HONORS:

2019 Everyday Hero Award
Granite State Children's Alliance 81 the Stafford County Child Advocacy Center

2015 Champion for Children
The Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County
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PAMELA ENGLISH

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

Administrative Director, 2006 - Present

•  Continued all duties of Business and Grants Manager, including all Financial Management of the
NHCADSV.

•  Assist with grant writing.

•  Administration management including maintaining insurance coverage for organization and employees
and administering employee benefits.

•  Management of information technology systems.

•  Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Business and Grants Manager, 1995 - 2006
•  Maintain all financial records, including payroll and employee benefits.

•  Manage state and federal funding programs and provide technical assistance to subcontractors.

•  Managed conversion to new computerized Fund Accounting system.

•  Hire and manage Bookkeeper and Office Coordinator.

•  Act as Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Administrative Assistant, 1993 -1995

•  Assisted two Co-Directors and a trainer with their administrative needs.

•  Responsible for coordination and management of office.

•  Maintain accurate financial records using full charge computerized bookkeeping system.

•  Insured compliance with all state and federal reporting requirements, including 941, state UC, W-2,
1099.

Self Employed Child care provider and Nanny, Concord, NH, 1988 -1993

Law Offices, Concord, NH, 1985 - 1988
Legal Secretary
•  Daniel D. Crean, Esq. and Charles H. Morang, Esq., Municipal and Business Law Practices
•  Robert K. Mekeel, Esq. Labor, Criminal, Worker's Comp. and General Law Practice

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE AND SKILLS

•  Fund Accounting Software
Spreadsheets
Microsoft Office Word and Excel

Outlook and Outlook Express

•  Effective supervisory management
Excellent organizational skills
Detail oriented

Ability to manage multiple, simultaneous deadlines
Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements
Working knowledge of computer management
Computerized accounting management
Experience and knowledge of New Hampshire employment law

EDUCATION
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NU Technical Institute, Concord, NH
Selected Accounting and Management Courses

Merritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR
Legal Secretarial Degree n

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

2002-Present Northwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years
1990-2002 Dewey/Kimball School PTA
1983-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

REFERENCES

Available upon request.
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NH COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salaiy % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Joi Smith Program Director Zero Zero

Pamela English Administrative & Finance

Director

Zero Zero



Lerl A. SliiUsflt'c
ComnitiitBcr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALJH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL A OTHER DRUGS

129 PLEASANT STREET,CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271'9S64 1^804-0909

Fai: 603-271:0105 TOD Accm:T-800-735-2964 mn\.<lhhs.nh.Kov/<lctes/bda$

June 10. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

^REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departmerit of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend an existing
cphtract with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Dorfiestic and Sexual Violence (VC# 155510-
B001); Concord, NH to provide services for prevention and mitigation .of Adverse Childhood
^periehces, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by
$360,000 from $720,006 to $1,080.600 and extending the completion date from June 30.2021 to
June 30, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Other funds .(Governor's
Commission funds).

■the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on September 18, 2019,
Item #18 and most recently drriended with Governpr and Council approval on April 8,'2020, item
#15.

Funds are anticipated to be asmllable in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022,
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line Iterns within the price lirfiitatipn and encumbrances between stale
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95t92-920516-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT .QF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: DIVISION-FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State
Fiscal
Year

Class/
Account

Class Title Job
Number

Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amourit

Revised
Budget

2020 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058502

$360,000 $0 $360,000

2021 ■, -102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058502

$^0,000 $0 $360,000

2022 10^500731 Contracts for
Prog Svc

92058502
$0 $360,000 $360,000

Total $720,000 $360,000 $1,060,000

rfn Oepai tment of Health a»d Human Seruiw'Miision it to join eom muiiitiespnd fainilin -
in providing opportuhiliei for citiiens to oc^'tw health and inde/^ndtncf.
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EXPLAMAtlOM

The purpose of this r^uest is to continue programming and practices to support ̂ildren
and thdr famiiies and car^ivers Who haye exp^iebc^ Adverse Childhood Experlenfces. The
Governor's Cornmission on,Alcohol and other Drugs approved funding on April 15, 2020 for the
New Hampshire Coalition against. Domestic and Sexual Violence arid its TnGmt>er agencies to
Irnplernent programming drid practices to support children and their famiiies/caregiver who have
■experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences. In accordance with RSA 12-J. the Department
cam'es out the administrative functions of the Comrnlssion.

7\ppf0xirnately 350 children will be served from JUly 1, 2021 to June 30,2022.
The CohtraclorvMl! continue to subcontract with twelve (12) Domestic and Sexual Violehce

Crisis Centers to prowde evidence-based or evidence-informed programs and practices that
miti^le the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences for children, by utilizing a whole-family
approach. Tliie Contractor'will erasure the member organizations provjde appropriate education
arid support for chiidren arxi their families and caregivers.

The services and programs provide support for children up to eighteen (18) years of age
who have wilnessed or been vnotirr^ of trauma, as weH as families and caregivers. The types
of si?)ports offered Inclucte child advocacy, parent-ctilld mentors, peer mentoring, cNId and parent
therapy, support groups, curriculum based programs, and child enrichrnent and development
programmlrig. The goal is to rediice the Impact on children who have wltir^sed arid/or been
victim's of trauma arid the Incidence of future trauma Ihiat may be prevented through at^ss to
the^ services. i

6}lldhood experiences have been shown to have a slgniflcarit impact on future
victimization and perpetration of violence and lifelong health Implications. Individuals experiencing
AdverseCChildhood Experiences are also at a signFficant risk for substance use disorders.

The services made available through this contract include staffing In the twelve (1.2)
Domestic arid Sexual Violence Crisis Centers to advocate for children arid youth Who have
witness^ traumatic events. Including overdoses. Research has shown that when preventing
and/or mitigating Adverse Childhood ^perlences, outcomes can improve future social and health
outcomes, ^eluding:

Increase In coping skills to address depression and/of anxiety.
•  Increase in awareness and access to services, and supports to prevent or reduce

ACES

•  Increase in child-parenl/caregiver bonding.
As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2,

Renewal of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Goverrior and" Council approval. The Department Is exercising its
option'to renew services for one (1) the one (1) year available.

Should the Goverrior arid Council riot authorize this request, children with Adverse
Childhood Experiences and their farrillles and caregivers may not receive adequate support.
advo(racy, and education to byercome those experiences.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: T 00% Other Funds (Governor Cornmlssioner Funds).



His Excellency, Governor Chnstpf^r T. Sununu
and the Honorable CouncP

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This 7^ Amendment to the Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis
Centers contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Sen/Ices ("State" or "Department") and the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, ("the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at PO Box 353. Concord,
New Hampshire. 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019 (Item #16), as amended on April 8. 2020, (item #15). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Paragraph #2, Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon vwitten
agreement of the parties and approvai from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

6/30/2022

2. Form P-37, General-Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,080,000

SS-2020-BDAS-0&-AOVER-01-A02 New Hampshire Coalition Against
.  LS

Oomesllc and Sexual Violence Initials

A.$.1.0 Page 1 of3 Date
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All terms and condlllons of the Contract and prior amendrnents not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2021 subject to Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/1/2021

Date

—OMuiiBAM

KAijA Fm

Title: Director

S/31/2021

Date

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
VipieOGfiftlo»*dby;

W /U..

Name- LVW'^schol lett
Title: Executive Director

SS-2020-BOAS-05-ADVER-01 .A02

. A-S-1,0

New Hampshire Coaiillon Against
Domestic anO Sexual Violence

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeuSJanM by.

6/1/2021 I
Date

Title: Attorney
/

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SS-2020-BOAS-05-ADVER-01-A02 New Hampshire Coalillon Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stale ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify thai NEW HAMPSHIRE

COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofii Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on April 30. 1981. 1 further ecnify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>' of

Stale's onice have been received and is in good standing as far as this olTlcc is concerned. •

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 0005338757

s

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my lund and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Sccrciar)' of Stale
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Lindsay Nadeau hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duty elected Chairperson/Officer of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 10. 2019 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Lyn M. Scholletl, Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Tllle of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instrumerits, and any -amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: May 28,2021
^lure/of Elected Officer

lame: Lmdsay Nadeau
Title: Chairperson, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MHiDorrm)

05/17/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING tNSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the cortincate holder Is en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo ondorsod.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies mey reguire an endorsement. A siatamant on
Ihls certlScato does not confer rights to the certincete holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

raoouCEs

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

POBOX742S

GBIord NH 03247-7425

nam"* Eleanor Spinazioia
Sjr"S...,v IKJ,-.. (MWMWIM
A^'^aa- Eleanofspina22oia6eslnsursnce.net

wsuitcius) AFFoaoiMO covEiuce MAlC •

iMSURCiiA: Great American Insurance Group GAIG

MSURSD

NH CoenUon Against Domestic and Sexual VIotence. DEIA: NHCADSV

POeox3S3

Concord . NH 03302

iKsnaea B: l-'^erty Mutual Agency Corporstlen

INSURER c :

INSURER 0:

INSURIR a :

INSURER F;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POL»CIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDtCATED. NOTWriHSTANDtNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDTTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SU&lECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPC OF MSURANCe STiirSI] POLXVNUMSER

Mueye/F
nm/DorrrYY)

eouevEKP
(MMA>0nrYYY1 LMITS 1

A

X COMHERaAt. OENERAL UABIUTY

MAC 5464236 20 05/15/2021 05/15/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1.000.000

^ OCCUR DJUUCETDULMILU , 100.000

MEO e3(P (AAV ent Beraenl t 5.000

PERSONAL a AOv iN/urrr
, 1.000,000

1 GENI. AiQGMCATC LIMTT APFLieS PER; GENERAL AGCREOATE
, 2.000,000

□ -oucDss Dioc
OTHER:

PROOUCTS • CCFTPiOP AGO , 2.000.000

H t

A

1 AUTOUOBBJ UABBJTT I

MAC 5464236 20 05/15/2021 05/15/2022

COuaiNEO StNClE UMT i 100.000

ANY AUTO

:HeOUL£D
rros
IN-CWNEO
rms rtNLv

BOOLYINA/RY (P« parwn) t

OWMEO
AUTOS ONLY
HREO
AUTOS ONLY

sc
AU

BOORY INJUrW (Pw MdatM) 1

X X NC
Ai^

PROPERTY DAMAGE
rp«»Mfc>Mt1 1

J $

A

X UUSRELLALIAB

EXCESS UAB X
OCCUR

CLAIUS4U06 UM88234007-13 05/15/2021 05/15/2022
EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000.000
AGCREOATE , 1.000.000

1 060 l^^RSTEHTlONl iO-OW) 1 s

B

moRxeRS coMPeNSATioN
ANOEUPLOYERriJAaiUTV
AMVP«0P»eeT0RrwwT*i6ive«cuTive
OFIXERACMBGR EXC4.U0E07 | ^ |
(UtndMOnr M NH) '
oisCftlPnON OF OPEAATCNS b«le<«

N/A WC5-31S-e04577.0l1 05/15/2021 05/15/2022

pE/I I 1 OfH-
RTATim? 1 1 FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT ^ 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EL^OYBE , 500.000
EA.. DISEASE • POUCV LIMIT ^ 500.000

oes(»9TI0NOP OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEWCLES (ACORD 101. Adailiana RtnurU ScImM. mfy b* UAOtM 11 men ipaee 1* reQitlrM)

NH OHHS

129 Plesssnt Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRtSEO POLICIES BE CANCEUEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE OELIVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIve .

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights roservod.
Th« AGGRO namo and logo oro roglatored marlis of ACORO
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NHCADSV Vision and Mission

Vision

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and
just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected
by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Note; The language below will b.e used in grant applications and other documents to
provide further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent
community-based member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working,
together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, slate and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their

responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April 2011

New Hampshire Coalition Against Dom8Sllc& Sexual Violence * PO Box 353 - Concord, NH 03302 * 603.224.8893
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST

DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS
June 30. 2020
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C

CEK l'IKICD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N. STATE STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHrRE0330l

ME^IBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN iNSmVTEOF TAX «(603) 226-3532 MEMBEROFTMEPRIVATE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR^S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domesiic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2020 and the related statement of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material missiaiement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material niisstatcmcnt.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entit)''s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriaie in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efrccliveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accovmting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriaie to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domesiic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2020 and the
changes In Its net assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Report on Summarized Comparative InformatiOD
We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2019
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated October 4,2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative infomtation presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Port 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly staled, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 23, 2021,
on our consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

fC/

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
February 23,2021

•2-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sc.tual Violence

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2020 and June 30,2019

See Independent Auditors' Report

ASSETS

2020 2019

CURRENT ASSETS

Cosh and Cosh EquiN'olcnls

Kesiricied Cosh and Cosh equivalents

Ccnilicoics of Deposit, Short-Tcrm

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

s 48.920

89.537

143.968

1.968.260

22.979

S 54,183

46,760

142,197

1.881,645

19,916

Total Current Assets 2.275.664 2,144,701

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment

Leasehold Improvements

J4,654

37.719

14,654

27,719

Less Accumuluted Depreciation

52,373

(15.887)

■ 42,373
(9,494)

Total Property and Equipment, Net 36,486 32.879

OTHER ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents Designated

forLong-Term investment

Long-term Investments

Certificates of Deposit, Long-Tcrm

Security Deposit

347,689

207,016

6.213

350,655

167,665

6,213

Total Other Assets 560,918 524,533 .

Total Assets s 2.873,068 S 2.702,113

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accnrcd Expenses

Federal Taxes Pavablc

s 1,520.941

79,223

$ 1.587,493

103,664

1,428

Total Current Liabilities 1,600,164 1.692,585

OTHER LIABILITIES

SBA Paycheck Protection Program Loan 175,000

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

1,008,367

89,537

962,768

46,760

Total Net Assets 1,097,904 1,009,528

Total Liabilities and Net Assets s 2,873,068 s 2,702,113

Noics 10 rinancial Statements

.3.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

>'car Coded June 30, 2020, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2019
See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2020 2019

SUPPORT AJVD RKVEf^VJI-

Gram Revenue %  s.T-io.asj $  717.245 S 9,457.727 $ 7.580.413

Contributions 281,953 - 281,953 204,789
Donated Services 66,758 - 66,758 106,680

Interest Income 6;iS6 - 6,156 5.074

Miscellaneous Income 45.055 - 45,055 31,108

Total Contributions and Support 9,140,404 717.245 9.857.649 ■  7,928.064
Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment - - - 19,018

Investment Dividends 7.763 - 7.763 -

Unrealised and Realized Gain on Investments 10.603 - 10,603 -

Investment Fees (1,272) - (1.272) .

Net Investment Gains and Earnings 17.094 - 17,094 19.018

Total Support and Revenue 9,157,498 717.245 ,  9,874.743 7,947.082

Net Assets Released from Donor Imposed Restrictions 674.468 (674,468)

EXPENSES
Program Services 9,650,552 - 9,650,552 7,783,527

Management and General 1 14,833 - 114,833 112,718

Fundraising 20.982 - 20,982 29.689

Total Expenses 9.786.367 - 9.786.367 7,925,934

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 45,599 42,777 88,376 21,148

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 962,768 46,760 1,009,528 988,380

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR S  1.008,367 $  89,537 $  1,097,904 S  1,009,528

Notes (0 Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2020

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2019

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management & Total Total

Services Gencrnl Fundraislns 2020 2019

Salaries .  J 1.063,125 5  71.862 i 12.972 $  1,147.959 $  1.055,205

Payroll taxes 86.478 5.846 1.055 93.379 85.048

Health and Dental Insurance 95,014 6.423 1,159 102,596 99,126

Other Employee Benefits 37.760 2.552 461 40,773 34,290

Professional Services 131.289 8.874 1,602 141.765 137,545

Contract/Grant Services 6,906,436 - - 6,906,436 5,749,544

Survivor Grants 562.698 - - 562,698 253,628

Rental Assistance 150.967 • . 150,967 -

Memberships 5.130 ■ 347 63 5,540 . 4,328

Publications 1.317 89 16 1,422 1,288

Advertising/Public Awareness 5.552 375 68 5.995 3,697

Copying 3.667 248 45 3,960 3,402

OlTicc Supplies 35,937 2.429 438 38,804 41,733

Postage 4,300 291 52 4,643 5,853

Printing 1.921 130 23 2,074 7,890

Equipment & Moving 1,098 74 13 1,185 3,421

Maintenance & Repair 46,915 3.171 572 50.658 45,840

Rent Expense 79.089 5.346 965 85,400 82,775

Interest - • - - 515

Parking 7.751 524 95 ■ 8,370 7,157

Insurance 6.047 409 74 6,530 8,197

PMC Partial Reimbursemciii • - . . 1,450

Staff Development 13.042 882 159 14,083 "25,755

Travel • 41,482 2,804 506 44.792 51,567

Telephone 34,690 2.345 423 37.458 50,881 '
Technology 88.147 • ■

88,147 -

Utilities - - • - 376

AVAP Miscellaneous Expense 39,117 - ■ 39,1 17 59,891

AVAP Member Training/Education 2,102 - • 2,102 4.621

Direct Training 44.919 -  . - 44,919 48.589

Community Education 136.462 - - 136,462 30,441

Depreciation Expense 5,92! 400 72 6,393 7,584

Accounting Fees 12,179 823 149 13,151 12,869

Federal Taxes Expense (Benefit) . (1.4)1) • (1,411) 1,428

Total Expenses > S 9,650,552 S  114333 S 20.982 S  9.786.367 S  7.925,934

Notes to Financial Siaiemcnis
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

See Independent Auditors' Report

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Cain on Sale of Properly and Equipment
Unrealized and Realized Cain on investments

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Crants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Federal Taxes Payable
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIF.S

Net Proceeds'on Sale of Property and Equipment .
Acquisition of Properly and Equipment
(Purchase) Maturity of Certificates of Deposit
Proceeds on Sales of Investments

Purchases of Investments

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment ofLong-Temi Debt
Net Proceeds from SEA Payroll Protection Program Loan

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITES

2020 2019

$  88.376

6.393

(10.603)

(86,615)

(3,063)

(10.000)

(43.122)

82,264

(419.350)

(390,208)

175,000

175,000

S  21,148

7,584

(19.018)

(354,188)

505

(66,552) 357,113

(24.441) (1.493)

(1.428) 1,428

(97,933) 13,079

228,390

65,318

293,708

(37,862)

(37,862)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (313,141) 268,925

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

451,598 182,673

$  138,457 $ 451,598

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

Donated Services

515

S  66,758 $ 106.680

Notes to Financial Statements
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OocuSign Envelope ID; 02F47S82-9OD9^E7.AS51-OeB05E4S2227
isew nampsnire coaiition Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Vcnrs Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 13 member agency crisis centers that
in turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking.
Twelve of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their
own mission, structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives
96% of Its funding from federal and state agencies and less than 1% from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities
through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence
and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to;

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels; .
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual

violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The
Coalition supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and
coordinating organization related to victim serx'ices. It administers state and federal contracts that provide
funding for its member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families.
Coalition staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child
advocacy centers to assure safely for children e.xposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual
violence, and for their parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boads and commissions
to advocate for effective responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to
drafl legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative
session. The Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to ISO bills each legislative
session. These bills address a wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family
-law; divorce and child cuslody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy
and personal information; healthcare; and economic Justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.

-7-



OocuSign Envelope 10; O2F47582-0OD9-4667-A551-D80O5E452227 ^ .
nampsnire coalition Against uomcstic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements
Ycnrs Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIF^. (continued^

Nature of Activities fContinuedl

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efTorts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout
New Hampshire. Coalition stafrcollaborate with stale and local entities to support policies and practices to
advance effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the
causes and effects .of domestic and sexual violence and stalking.and as well as services available across the
state. The Coalition has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public.
The following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual
violence and stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAR) founded in 1994 is a multi-agency collaboration
housed by the Coalition that ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual
violence and stalking throughout New Hampshire. AVAP is pan of AmeriCorps, a national serx'ice
program that offers opportunities to Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to
serve their country through national service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing ser\'ices to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are
trained in the AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they
use In 6ne-on-one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic
budgeting to checking a credit report. Members also provide information and facilitate referrals to local
financial and housing services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner-(SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting
medical/forensic examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution.
Coalition staff are responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals
across the slate to ensure that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic
exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the
perpetration of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist
Program was built on the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain
in a safe household with a non-violent parent.

-8-
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i>icw nampsnirc coalition Against uomcstic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements

Vcsirs Ended June 30,2020 tind 2019

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued^

The Family Violence Prevcnlion Specialisl program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention
Specialists (FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are co-located at local
DCYF District Offices. The FVPSs are a source ofassistance and training to child protective service
workers while providing advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This
program results in more effective assistance to victims through the development of interventions that
recognize the adult victim's need for support and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for
children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to the Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its'financial position and activities according to two classes of
net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receivingcontributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising
contributions, and performing administrative functions."

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, cither temporarily or
permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated lime restriction ends or the
purpose of the restriction is accomplished.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All
other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

-9-
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.  iNcw nampsnirc coaimon Against uomcstic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements
Ycnrs Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontiniiedi

Contributed Services

During the Years Ended June 30,2020 and 2019, the value of contributed services relating to printing,
community education, direct training and professional fees were $83,144 and $106,680, respectively.

in addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition;
these amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying staiement.of activities because the criteria for
recognition as contributed services has not been met.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comnensatcd Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services,
and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019 in the amounts of $70,244 and $63,255, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on their
•relationship to those activities. Those expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses and occupancy
costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on square footage. Payroll and payroll related expenses are
based on estimates, of time and effort. Other cost allocations are based on the relationship between the
expenditure and the activities benefited.

Properh' nnd Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize properly and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for
repairs, maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are
expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment
are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions
without donor restriction unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire
property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when
the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifles net
assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment
are depreciated using the straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $6,393
and $7,584, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Yenrs Ended June 30,2020 and 2019

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinucd^

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal Income tax
under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509Ca)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax
positions of the Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of
whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows the guidance of
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income
taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected,
to be taken in a tax return.

Cash and Cash Eauivnlents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash
equivalents reported within the statentent of financial position to the sum of the corresponding amounts
within the statement of cash flows as of June 30:

2^ 2019
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 48,920 $ 54,183
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 89,537 46,760
Cash and Cash Equivalents Designated

for Long-Tcrm Investment - 359 555
To'fl 1451.598

Certificates of Deposit

Cenificatcs of deposit are reported on the accompanying statement of financial position. The certificates
bear interest ranging from 1.50% to 3.50% as of June 30, 2020. \4alurities range from six months to four-
years.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title I, New Hampshire, The State and Its Government. Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section I5:l-a,the
Coalition is required to physically and rinanclally separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $3,450 and $2,061 at June 30; 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances In several accounts at local banks. These accounts'are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition
may have cash balatices at the'fmancial institution that e.xceeds the insured amount. Management does not
believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30, 2020 and 2019
the Coalition had uninsured cosh balances of $85,316 and $0. respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Coalition follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $5,995 and $3,697 respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Ycnrs Ended June 30,2020 and 2019

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Coinparativc Financial Information

The financial siatemcnts include certain prior-year summarized comparative Information in total but not by •
net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30,2019, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, grants receivable, prepaid e.xpenscs,
accounts payable and accrued expenses arc stated at carrying cost at June 30.2020 and 2019, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. Other financial instruments
held at year-end are investments, which arc stated at fair value.

I

Rcclassificntions

Certain financial statement and note informotion from the prior year financial statements has been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 23,2021, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

Ncwlv Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended June 30,2019, the Coalition adopted the requirements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board's Accounting Standards Update No. 2016- 14—Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU 2016- 14). This Update addresses the
complexity and undcrstandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and
availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return between nol-ror-profil entities. A key change required by ASU 2016-14 is the net asset
classes used in these financial statements. Amounts previously reported as unrestricted net assets are now
reported as net assets without donor restrictions and amounts previously reported as temporarily restricted
net assets and permanently restricted net assets arc now reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Noi-for-Profii Entities (Topic 958>—Clarifying the Scope
and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Conlributipns Made. The FASB issued this
ASUto clarify and improve the scope and the accounting guidance for contributions .received and
contributions made. The amendments In this ASU should assist entities in (I) evaluating whether
transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic
958, Not-for-profit Entities, or as e.xchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and (2) .
determining whether a contribution is conditional.

In May 2014, the FASB Issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue Recognition (Topic 606)—Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. This ASU introduces a new five-step revenue recognition model In which an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Yenrs Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued^

Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a lessee
will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more ihar^ twelve months.
Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows
arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease.
However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the statement of
financial position—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the statement of
financial position.

The Coalition is presently evaluating the effects that these ASUs will have on its future financial

statements, including related disclosures. ASUs above are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15. 2019 and the Coalition will be required to adopt them in the year ending June 30, 2021.

NOTE B - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when payments arc made. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019 respectively,
the net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2020 2019

Housing Assistance to Survivors $ 24,615 $20,310
Data Assessment - 5,500
Direct support to Survivors 19,200
Technology Improvement 5,117
Human Trafficking Services 20,574
Economic Support to Survivors 20.031 20.950 •

Total S 89.537 S 46.760

Net assets in the amount of $674,468 and $79,440 were released from donor restrictions by incurring
expenses satisfying the restricted purpose during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE C - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1, 2018,
expiring in 2028. Annual rent was $74,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the
lease term. Annual parking was $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2021 $ 96,343
2022 99,151 1

2023 103,011

2024 106,546

■  2025 110.223
Thereafter 312.566

Total" $ 828.300

Rent expense related to the lease was $85,400 and $82,777 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
respectively. Rent paid for parking spaces totaled $7,800 during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, and are included in parking expense on the statement of financial expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years EndcdJunc 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE D - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
totaled $25,850 and $22,960, respectively.

NOTE E - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with PASS ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a
recurring basis at June 30 were as follows: . . . .

2020

investments

Certificates of Deposit
Grants Receivable

Fair Value

$ 347,689

352.984

1-968.260

Quoted Prices

In Active Markets

For identical Assets

(Level n

$ 347.689
352,984

imm

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

$

1.968.260

2019

Certificates of Deposit
Grants Receivable

$ 309.862
1.881.645

S2.191.507

$ 309,862 $

:  1.881.645
? 309.862 s;1.881.645

Fair values for investments were determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions. The fair value of grants receivable are estimated at the
present value of expected future cash flows.

NOTE F- BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the
following as of June 30:

Fund for Grace

Operating Reserve

2020

$ 62,762

M8.66S

S 21 1.427

2019

J  72,386

148.665

^  221.051

NOTE G - LIOUIDITV & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support
is held for the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial
assets that could be readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of deposit, short-term
Grants Receivable, net of

Grants Payable
Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction

2020 2019

$  138,457 $  100,943
145,968 142.197

474.001 302,985

(89.5371 (46.760>

$ 668.889 $ 499.365
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iNew nampsnire coaimon Against uomcstic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair-market value. Investments at June 30,2020 and
2019 arc composed of the following:

2020 2019
Cost Market Cost Mark

Equity mutual funds $ 70,241 S 72,830 $ - $
Mutual funds 121,377 123,897

Money market 24,488 24,488
Exchange traded funds 121.479 126.474
Total S 337.585 % 347.6S9

•  !

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820-10 Fr/iV Value Measurements defines fair value,
requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair
value measurements based on the observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It
prioritizes the inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

Under Topic 820-10, the three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Coalition has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are either directly
or indirectly observable for the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

All investments are measured at Level I. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets in active markets.

The individual investments contain net assets without donor restrictions. Investments in marketable equity
securities and marketable debt securities are carried at fair market value determined by "quoted market
prices" per unit (share) as of the statement of financial position date. All other investments are stated at
cost. Donated investments are recorded at the mean of the high and low price as of the date of receipt.
Cains and losses on investments are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions, unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Spending Policy

Each fiscal year the Coalition is authorized to withdraw up to 5% of the total market value of the total
portfolio of the Fund. The amount available to be withdrawn in a fiscal year will be up to 5% of the Fund
market value as of the last business day of the fiscal third quarter of the preceding fiscal year. Only with the
approval of a majority vote of the Board of Directors, present at a meeting duly called for such purpose,
may the Coalition exceed the 5% spending cap.

-15-
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NOTE H - INVESTMENTS, (continued)

Investment Return Obiectives. Risk Parameters and Stralecies

The Coalition Board of Directors is responsible for developing policies that govern investment of the assets
of the Coalition. The purpose of the following Investment Policy, which is to be reviewed annually by the
Finance Committee of the Coalition are to:

Establish the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and eligible securities relating to investments
owned or controlled by the Coalition through a third-party investment advisor.

Identify the criteria against which the investment performance of the Coalition's investments will be
measured.

Communicate the objectives to the Board of Directors, investment managers and funding sources that
may have involvement.

Serve as a review document to guide the ongoing oversight of the management of the Coalition's
investments.

NOTE 1 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20,2021 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 4.75% and 5.50% as of June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE .1 - SEA PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

On April 23,2020 the Coalition received approval of a loan from The U.S. Small Business Administration
as part of the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of$175,000. This loan calls for interest fixed at
1%. No payments are required for six months from the date of the loan. This note will mature two years
from the date of first disbursement of the loan. It Is likely that this loan will be forgiven under the
provisions of Section 1106 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securit>' Act (CARES Act) (P.L.
116-136).

NOTE K-RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - COVID-19

As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is unknown and
cannot be estimated at the present time.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOU.VTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE'AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to nnancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United Stales, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated February 23, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstaiemcnls, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatcment of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or delected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control that Is less severe than a matcriai'weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.. However, material weaknesses may exist thai
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatemcni, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not e.xpress such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Audinng Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compl iancc and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
February 23, 2021
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MEMBER

AMERICAN INSTnVTEOF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

•16 N. STATE STREET

CONCORD. NEW IIAMPSHIRE0330I

TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
Fax #(603) 226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE

COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
types .of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each cfNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30,2020. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's major federal programs arc identiHed in the suinmar>' of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management RcsponsibUlr>'

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in (he United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Contpirolier General of the United Stales; and .
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code offederal Regulations Pan 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompiiance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit Includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit docs not provide a legal dclerminalipn of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

in our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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Report on Internal Control over .Compliance

Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to lest and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over
compliance..

A deficiency in iniernai control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliancc with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliancc with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or delected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

■ Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to>idcntify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
February 23, 2021
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Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2020

SECTION I-SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence were prepared in accordance with CAAP.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditors Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reponed in accordance with Covernmeni '
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported
in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major programs were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575
Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.671

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II-FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION 111 - FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

No matters were reported.

-21-



OocuSign Envelope ID: 02F47582-9OD9^6E7-A551-D8B05E452227

New Hampshire Coaltlion Against Domestic and SexoarViolcnce
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30. 2020

t
Federal Pass-llirough Passed

CFDA Entity Identifying Through to Federal

Pronram Title Number Number Subrccipiems Expenditures

US Dcnartmenl of Hmislna nnd Urban Dcvcloonicnl:

Pass-Through Programs from State ofNH Deportment ofHHS:
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 102-300731 173,408 184.703

US nctKirtmenlofJuSlice;
1

Direct Program • Violence Against Women Act of 2000 16.556 1
- 38.500

Direct Program • Violence Against Women Act or2000 16.556 - 196,943

Pass-Through Programs from Sinlc ofNH Department ofJusticc:
VAWA, SASP 16.017 20I9SASR0I 334.456 334,456

VAWA. SASP 16.017 2020SASP01 337 337

OVC Human TrafHcking 16.320 - 32,766

VOCA, Tcchnolog)' improvement (6.575 -
39.767

VOCA, Data Projects Coordinator 16.575 5,668

■ VOCA, SA 16.575 20I8VOC49 126,164 478,318

VOCA. CA 16.575 20I8VOC47 - 75.181

VOCA. DV 16.575 20I8VOC48 532.682 569.043

VOCA, Supplemental 16.575 20I9VOC59 304,742 327,678

VOCA, TECH 16.575 2020VOC3I - 197,819

' VOCA. PMC Subcontracts 16.575 2020VOC31 2.333,945 2,333,945

VOCA, Training 16.575 2020VOC3I - 14,236

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2019Wp90 • 76.183

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2020VAWI6 • 78.349

Total Pass-Through Programs 3.632,326 4,563,746

TOTAU U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,632,326 4,799,189

U S. Dennriment of Health nnd Human Services:

Direct Program • Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.591 • 55,913

"Direct Program • Family Violence Prevention Sen-iccs Act 93.591 - 200,984

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS:
Sc.xual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 216,485 303,796

Family Violence Prevention Scr\*iccs Act 93.671 155510 BOOl 857,173 877,923

Total Pass-Through Prograttis 1.073,658 1,181,719

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH A HUMAN SERVICES 1,073,658 1,438,616

Coroorntion for National & Commimitv S«r%'iccs:

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!

AmcriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 • 225.379

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $' 4,879,392 $ 6,647,887
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30,2020

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
aciivit>' ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30,2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against

-  Domestic and Sexual Violence,.it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets, or cash flows ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost
Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Program Title Federal CFDA ff Amount Provided

Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.267 S 173,408

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 334,793

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 3.297.533

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 216,485

Family Violence Prevention Services Act • 93.671 857.173

4.879.392

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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S. Joi Smith

SKILLS SUMMARY:

Highly creative and enthusiastic community builder
Excellent communication and organizational skills
Aptitude for technology and innovation
Activist and passionate participant in the arts community

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY;

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence - Progrom Director August 2020 - Present
Concord, NH

Provide leadership and oversight In the development and administration of member services, training and technical assistance,
statewide programs and other special projects of the NHCADSV In line with its mission, strategic plan and community needs.
Recruit, train and supervise program staff, as they implement and sustain initiatives of the NHCADSV. Oversee training and
technical assistance efforts of the NHCADSV. Develop and implement evaluation tools for statewide programs and special
projects. Provide high level management and support to the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP.) Assist with grant
writing in response to federal, state, and private funding opportunities. Serve as liaison to the N HCADSV's 13 member programs
by identifying needed resources and training to improve direct service delivery. Serve on statewide committees to assist in the
improvement of multi-disciplinary response to domestic violence, sexual violence, stalking and human trafficking.

HAVEN - Manager 0/Client Services July 2015 - August 2020
Portsmouth, NH

Manage HAVEN client services program and supervise direct service staff. Serves as the Agency's AmeriCorps Victim Assistance
Program Advocate Coordinator and Internship Coordinator. Develop, organize and facilitate in-service and ongoing training
programs for all direct service staff, interns and volunteers. Maintain and continually develop an on-going effective client
services program using best practices for survivors of domestic and sexual violence through a 24 - hour hotline, office walk-ins,
and accompaniments to hospitals, police stations, courts and child advocacy centers. Engage and maintain excellent
relationships with victim service community partners both at the local and state level such as the NH State Attorney General's
office, NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence (NHCADSV), Rocklngham & Strafford NH County Prosecutors and child
advocacy centers (CAC's), NH Department of Child, Youth and Family Senrices (OCYF), and local Law Enforcement, pro-bono'
attorney programs, and district courts.

Sexual Assault Support Services (SASS) September 2011 - July 2015
Volunteer Advocate (Sept. son - July 2012) \ Night Supervisor (July 2012- Sept.2013) | Client Services Coordinator (Sept. 2013 - July 2015)
Portsmouth, NH

Provide supportive services and referrals to victims and survivors of sexual violence through the 24 - hour hotline, hospital and
police accompaniments and peer support groups. Schedule and coordinate SASS's 24-hour services coverage. Provide
supervision to AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program members, direct service staff and volunteer advocates. Develop and
Implement training and programming for trauma-informed sexual assault/abuse supportive services.

COMMITTEES & BOARDS SERVED:

NH Child Abuse & Neglect Task Force 2020-Present
NH Child Fatality Review Committee 2020 - Present
NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force 2017 - Present
NH Incapacitated & Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review Committee 2020 • Present
NH Lethality Assessment Program (LAP) Steering Committee 20ifl - Present
NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Advisory Board 2017 • Present
NH Wellness & Primary Prevention Council 2020- Present
Child Advocacy Center of Rocklngham County MDT Advisory Board 2019 • 2020
Strafford County Child Advocacy Center Advisory Board 2017 • 2020
Strafford County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2016 - 2020
Rocklngham County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2015 • 2020

OTHER RELATED EXPERIENCE:
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S. Joi Smith

Back Alley Productions • Founder/Olrector/Producer 2008 • Present
A cutting-edge, independent theater company focused on executing a clear, strong vision for quality theater programs, and
maintaining inclusivity, integrity and respect for all involved with each production.

Players' Ring Board of Director • Board Member/Producer Liaisori/Marketing Chair 2013 - 2019
Portsmouth, NH

A non-profit, groundbreaking, black box theater whose mission Is to provide an environment where artists can thrive, grow,
take risks and make daring choices. Responsible for training, coordinating, scheduling, supporting and mentoring
more than 25 production companies throughout the season, as well as planning and executing any fundralsing efforts and
events for the theater. Manage and develop content for marketing, social media, and bl-weekly newsletters promoting each
production and event. Organize and facilitate community volunteer projects aimed at improving the theater space.

V-Day Portsmouth NH/V-Day Rochester NH/One Billion Rising • Organlxer/Producer/Dlrector 2001-2015
Organizing, producing and directing a yearly event focused on raising awareness and funds to end violence against women.
Organizing all aspects of these events, from casting, scheduling, staging, and directing, to securing donations and local
community support and creating content for and managing marketing and promotion of events. Fostering collaboration with
local beneficiaries and other community V-Day organizers, to cross-promote causes and events, and ensure consistent
messaging. Responsible for completing and submitting required reports and reconciling budgets at the end of each event.

ADDITIONAL SKILLS:

Trainings 8t Croup Facilitation: Experienced in developing and facilitating on-going required training for staff, community
partner professionals, as well as developing and facilitating survivor support groups.
Technology: Proficient in both MAC and PC platforms. Expertise in Microsoft Office programs & Office 365, Adobe Acrobat,
Adobe Photoshop, QuickBooks, and online project management and file share systems such as Freedcamp, Basecamp and
Dropbox, as well as Google docs-
Marketing: Additional expertise 81 aptitude for website design, social media management and email marketing. Skilled at
copywriting, editing and basic graphic design.

EDUCATION:

Plymouth Regional High School 1993

AWARDS & HONORS:

2019 Everyday Hero Award
Granite State Children's Alliance 8i the Stafford County Child Advocacy Center
2013 Champion for Children
The Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County
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PAMELA ENGLISH

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexuol Violence, Concord, NH

Administrative Director, 2006 - Present

•  Cominued all duties of Business and Grants Manager, including all Financial Management of the
NHCADSV.

•  Assist with grant writing.

•  Administration management including maintaining Insurance coverage for organization and employees
and administering employee benefits.

•  Management of information technology systems.

•  Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Business and Grants Manager, 1995 - 2006
•  Maintain all financial records, including payroll and employee benefits.

•  Manage stale and federal funding programs and provide technical assistance to subcontractors.

•  Managed conversion to new computerized Fund Accounting system.

•  Hire and manage Bookkeeper and Office Coordinator.

•  Act as Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Administrative Assistant, 1993 • 1995

•  Assisted two Co-Directors and a trainer with their administrative needs.

•  Responsible for coordination and management of office.

•  Maintain accurate financial records using full charge computerized bookkeeping system.

•  Insured compliance with all state and federal reporting requirements, including 941, state UC, W-2,
1099.

Self Employed Child cnrc provider and Nanny, Concord, NH, 1988 • 1993

Law Offices, Concord, NH, 1985 - 1988
Legal Secretary
•  Daniel D. Crean, Esq. and Charles H. Morang, Esq., Municipal and Business Law Practices
•  Robert K. Mekecl, Esq. Labor, Criminal, Worker's Comp. and General Law Practice

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE AND SKILLS

•  Fund Accounting Soflware
Spreadsheets.
Microsoft Office Word and Excel

Outlook and Outlook Express

•  Effective supervisory management
E.Kcellent organizational skills
Detail oriented

Ability to manage multiple, simultaneous deadlines
Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements
Working knowledge of computer management
Computerized accounting management
Experience and knowledge of New Hampshire employment law

EDUCATION



DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 02F475B2-gDO9-46E7-AS51-D8B05£452227

NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH
Selected Accounting and Management Courses

Mcrritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR
Legal Secretarial Degree II

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

2002-Presenl Northwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years
1990-2002 Dewey/Kimball School PTA
1983-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

REFERENCES

Available upon request.
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NH COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from
this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Joi Smiih Program Director Zero Zero

Pamela English Administrative & Finance

Director

Zero Zero
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Lorl A. ShiWnctie

Commiuloncr

MAR25»20 am10:^5 OftS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COVERPiOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9564 I .$00,904^)909

Fax:603-271.6105 TDDAcceii: I.800.735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.gov/dcbci/bdaj

March 16. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

State House

Concord. Nevi/ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to exercise a renewal
option to an existing sole source contract with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (Vendor # 155.510-8001). 100 North Main Street. Suite 300, Concord. NH
03301, to provide services for prevention and mitigation of Adverse Childhood Experiences
(ACEs), by increasing the price limitation by $360,000 from $360,000 to $720,000. and by
extending the completion date from June 30. 2020 to June 30, 2021. effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. 100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission-funds).

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 18. 2019 (Item #18).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05.95-90-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HNS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL.
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS.

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for Prog
Svc

92058502 $360,000 $0 $360,000

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for Prog
Svc

92058502 $0 $360,000 $360,000

Total $0 $0 $720,000
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole solirce because on January 10, 2020 the Governor's Commission
on Alcohol and other Drugs approved funding for the New Hampshire Coalition against Domestic
and Sexual Violence and its member agencies. The purpose of the additional funding included
in this request is to continue programming and practices to support children and their families
and caregivers who have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). In accordance
with RSA 12-J. the Department carries out the administrative functions of the Commission.

j Approximately 350 children will be served July, 2020 to June 30, 2021.
The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract

Language, Section 2, Renewal, that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to two
(2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service,
the parties* written authorization, and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The
parties are in agreement with renewing services for one (1) of the two (2) years at this time.

The Contractor will continue to subcontract with twelve (12) Domestic and Sexual
Violence Crisis Centers to provide evidence-based or evidence-informed programs and
practices that mitigate and prevent the impact of (ACEs for children, by utilizing a whole-family
approach. The Contractor will ensure the member organizations provide appropriate education
and support for children and their families and caregivers.

The services and programs provide support for children up to eighteen (18) years of age
who have witnessed or been victims of trauma, as well as their families and caregivers. The
types of supports offered include child advocacy, parent-child mentors, peer mentoring, child
and parent therapy, support groups, curriculum based programs, and children enrichment and
development programming. The goal is to reduce the impact on children who have witnessed
and/or been victims of traunia and the incidences of future trauma that may be prevented through
access to these services.

Childhood experiences have shown to have a significant impact on future violence,
victimization and perpetration, and lifelong health implications. Individuals experiencing ACEs
also are at a significant risk for substance use disorders (SUDs).

The services made available through this contract include staffing in the twelve (12)
Domestic and Sexual Violence Crisis Centers to advocate for children and youth who have
witnessed traumatic events, including overdoses. Research has shown that when preventing
and/or mitigating Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs), outcomes can Improved future social
and health outcomes, including:

•  Increased life expectancy.

•  Decreased risk for alcoholism, chronic pulmonary disease, depression, illicit drug use.
liver disease, adolescent pregnancy, and similar issues and diseases.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children with
ACEs and their families and caregivers may not receive adequate support, advocacy, and
education to overcome those experiences. (.

Area served: Statev/ide

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds (Governor Commissioner Funds).
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His ExMilency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabie Counal
Page 3 of 3

In the event that Other Funds (Governor Comnfiissioner Funds) become no longer
available. General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

y i'<n

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The DeporimcMcfHcoiihond Hiimon Serv'tect' Miuion u lojoin co/iimn«ti(c# ondfamilUa
in prowling opportiiniticM for cilixiu U> achieve health end independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within
Domestic Violence Crisis Centers

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the

Adverse Childhood Experiences (AQES) within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis
Centers contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1') is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, (hereinafter referred
to as 'Ihe Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 100 North Main Street, Suite
300, Concord. NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 16. 2019 (Itern P1B).) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

VNHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit 01, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Paragraph #2. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and Increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$720,000.

New Hampshire Coalition Againsl i o
Domestic and Sexual Violence Amendmertl #1 Contfactof Irtllials ' '

SS.2Q20-BOAS4)5-AOVER Page 1 of3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within
Domestic Violence Crisis Centers

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor artd Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

3 iI-XpZO

Date Name:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

State of LUmf^sk^Countv of/Vgyvnu^^J^ on 2^/I'Jq^o before the
undersigned officer, ̂ rsonally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person v^ose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity Indicated above.

Sranature of Notary Punic or Justice of^nature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

2.
s.andrTI'

■  -f-

/\Lx>4A>y^
Narn'e.andrTitle.of Notvy or Justice of the

:  Kfiy Commission Expires: I^ ̂
\ r. ; ; - -» '
• ̂  \ vr-m:-. ■' c

.  hi-' j
■"*

New Hampshire CoslilionAgoinsl
Domestic end Sexual Violence AmenOmenI 01 Contractor Initials

SS-2Q20-BDAS-OS-ADVER Page 2 oI 3 Date 3-H-202d
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within
Domestic Vioience Crisis Centers

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date A- , A
'itie:

\ hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: , (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire CodGtior> Agsinsi
Domestic and Sexual Vio.lence

SS-2O20-BDAS-0S-ADVER

Amendmeni

Page 3 of 3

Contractor Inillals

n.i. ̂



OocuSign Envelope 10:02F475B2-8DO9-46E7-A551-O880SE452227

A.

• C«acAU>leocr

Ktija S. Fos
Dircttor

fiUC23'19Pfi 2:00 OAS
STATE OF NEW HAMFSHtRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/mtONFOM SiEHAVlORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 0J30I
602.271-9544 I.8804S2-324S Eit. 9544

Fa>: 605-271-4322 TDD Accoi: r.800.735.2964 www.dhhi.nh.tov

If ^

August 27, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a sole source agreement with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence (NCADSV), Vendor # 155510-8001), 100 North Main Street, Suite 300,
Concord, NH 03301 to prevent and mitigate incidences of adverse childhood experiences
(ACEs), statewide, in an amount not to exceed S360,000, effective upon.Governor and Executive
Council approval through June 30, 2020. 100% Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for
State Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and .adjust
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office. If needed and justified.

05-95-90-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL H^LTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS.

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $360,000

Total $360,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because on December 14,2018, the Governor's Commission
on Alcohol and other Drugs approved funding for the New Hampshire Coalition against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (NHCAOSV) and its member agencies to implement programming and
practices to support children and their families/caregivers who have experienced adverse
childhood experiences (ACEs). Per RSA 12-J, the Department carries out the administrative
functions of the Commission.
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His ExceBen^. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honoratiie CourtcB
Pago 2 of 3

The purpose of this request is to enhance and expand the worl* of the NHCADSV and its
meinber agencies statewide to prevent and mitigate the incidences of ACEs.

Approximately 350 children will be served through June 30. 2020.
The Contractor will enter into subcontracts with its tvirelve (12) Domestic and Sexual

Violence Crisis Centers to provide evidence-based or evidence-infom^ programs and
practices that mitigate and prevent the impact of ACES for children utilizing a whole-family
approach. The Contractor will ensure the member organizations provide appropriate education
and support for children and their families.

The services and programs provided will support children up to eighteen (18) years of
age who have witnessed or been victims of trauma, as well as their families and caregivers. The
types of supports offered include child advocacy. parenl-chikJ mentors, peer mentoring, child
and parent therapy, support groups, curriculum based programs, and children enrichment and
development programming.. The goal Is to reduce the impact on children who have witnessed
and/or been victims of trauma and the incidences of future trauma may be prevented through
the blend of services available.

Childhood experiences, both positive and negative, have a tremendous impact on future
violence victimization and perpetration, and lifelong health and opportunity. ACEs are stressful
or traumatic events, which may include witnessing or directly experiencing abuse and neglect.
Individuals experiencing ACEs are a! a significant risk for substance use disorders (SOOs).

The sen/ices made available through this contract include increasing staffing in the
twelve (12) Domestic and Sexual Violence Crisis Centers in order to advocate for children and
youth who have witnessed traumatic events, including overdoses. Research has shown that
when preventing and/or mitigating ACEs, outcomes can include improved future social and
health outcomes, including;

Increased life expectancy.

Decreased risk for alcoholism, chronic pulmonary disease, depression, illicit drug
use, liver disease, adolescent pregnancy, and similar issues and diseases.

As referenced In the Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have the option to extend
contract services for.up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children with
ACES and their families may not receive adequate support, advocacy, and education to
overcome the ACES that have occurred and prevent future incidences of trauma.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds (Governor Commissioner Funds)
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Po9e 3 of 3

.In (he event (hat Other Funds (Governor Commissioner Funds) become no longer
available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

TKe Depofimtnt of Hoollh ond Human Scrviat' MUsion U la Join communUU$ and fomitios
in prouidin^ opporlunilxtt for ciliun* lo oehUiM haollK and iruUpcndtnct.
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FORM NUMBER P-37<vcnioo S/8/IS)
Subject: Advewe Childhood Exacficneei f ACESt vnihifl pQnffl'IC VjQknM Cril'l CtniCfl fSS-2P20-BPAS-O^-ADVER*

Notice: This asreemcnt ond ell of Its atiechmenLs shell become public upon submission lo Governor find
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confideniiil or proprietary must
be clearly Idenlified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the cor^traa.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION. ^
I.I Slate AgCfKy Name
NH Department ofHealihand Human Service

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord,NH0330l-3$}7

IJ Contraetor Nama

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

1.4 Contractor Address

too North Main Street, Suite 300
Concord, NH 03301

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603)224.8993

1.6 Account Number

OS.93'92.920$ 10.33820000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$360,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-271.9631

I. II Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

/~yn M' Ue^hf-, Z^Vee-^
1.13 Acknowledgement: St^eofAy6K/W.^iu4HdCounty of

provrn-.fa>*be.the.{ji6ft6Tt wl
idicatedd.'rbicckti-J i'r

before ihc undersignedofTicer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, orsatisfacioriiy
whose name is signed in block I.I I, aM acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

I.I-3-I- SiviA^/.^.-ofNojary Public or Justice of the Peace

■  . Z
t.13.2 Nam<\MifcTitlc ofNoury or Justice oflhe Peace

1.14 Stale Agency Signature

Date:

1.1$ Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

enOn.1.16 Approval by tlie N.H. Department of Adminitirntion, Division of Perto^nel 0/opplicabUj

By: Oirector.On:

1.17 Approval by the Anomey Ceneril Substance and Execution) 0/oppliceblt)

On:

1.18 Approval by the CovMnqp and Executive Council 0/opplkobit)

By: On:

Page I ofd
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2. EMPLOVMENTOFCONTRACTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORM ED. The Sioie orNew Hampshire, eciing
through the igency identified in block i.l ("Stite"), engages
cotttrtctor itkniificd in block 1.3 ("Conirector") to perfo/tn,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale or goods, or
both, identified ond more particularly described in ihe attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OFSERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Covemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hompshire. if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcrcundcr, shall become efTeciive on the date the Governor
and Execuiive Council approve this Agreement as ir>dicaled in
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is reguirtd, In which ease
the Agreement shall become effeciive on the dale the
Agreement Is signed by the Sute Agency as shown In block
1.14 ("EfTeciive Date").
3.2 if the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTectlve Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effeciive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not'
become cfTcctive, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
•the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONALNATUREOF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
vnihoul limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the ovailabilicy and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds, in Ihe event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifevcr, and shall
have the right to lerminaic this Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termination. The Sute
shall not be required to transfer fiirtds from any other auouni
to (he Account idcniiried in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/TRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

3.1 Theconiraclprice, method of payment, and terms of
payment ore identified ond more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is irtcofporited herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Sute of the contract price shall be the
only ond the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for oil
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in Ihe
perforTTunce hereof, and Shall be the only and the complete
compcnuiion to (he Contractor for (he Services. The Suit
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Pflgc2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
etherNvise payable to (he Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permined by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-e or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithsunding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall (he total of all paymcnu auihotited, or actually
made hereunder, exceed Ihe Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECULATiONS/ EQUAL EMPtOYMCNT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 in connection with Ihe performance of the Servieei. (he
Conlrscior Shall comply with all iiacuici, laws, regultlions,
and orders of federal, sute. county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon (he Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the reqmremeni to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, ineluding vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive Information from, and convey
Information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, ot national origin and will lake -
ofTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 Ifihis Agreement is funded In any part by monies of the
United States, the Coniraaor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates Oqsartmeni of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as (he Sute of New Hampshire or the United Sutes issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor hirther agrees to
permit the Siau or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining complisrKe with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditiorts of (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel ncccssary to pe/form the Services. The Contractor
warrants (hat all penonnel engaged In the Services shall be
qualined to perform the Services, arid shall be properly
licensed artd otherwise authorized to do SO under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during Ihe term of
this Agreement, and for o period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date In block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in o combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is ■ State
employee or official, who is materially Involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

0f4
Contractor Initials LM5

Date
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Agreement. Thisproviiion thill survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Competing OfTicer specified in block 1.9. orhisor
her successor, shall be the Stste's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation or this Agreement,
the Controcting CfTicer's decision shall be Onal for the State.

8. EVENT Of DEFAUtT/RCMeOtES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall conpittite an event of default hereunder
("Event of Dcfauii").
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
1.1-.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other cbvenani, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all. of the followittg actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice tpcciiying the Event
of Dcfauli end requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Ocfauli is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days aner giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Oeratili and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the ponton of the coninci price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
Shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set oftagainst any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreemem as bruched and pursue any of iu
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTV/
preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the w^ "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. Of acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited 10. alt studies, reports.
Hies, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproduaions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer '
printouts, notes, letters. memori/>da. papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data artd any property which has been received from
ihe State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
ursder this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to (he State upon demand or .upon
termination of ihis Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Conndeniialityo.f data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or o^er existing law. Disclosure of daia
requires prior wrinen approval of the State.

Page

10. TERM (NATION. In Ihe evcni of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
omcer. not later than Tifleen (i 5) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
dcui) all Services performed, and (he comraei price earned, to
and including (he date oflermination. The form, subject
miner, content, and number of copio of the Termination
Report shell be identical to those of any Final Report

-  described in the anached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of (his Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contraeior, and Is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Stale. Neiiherihe Contractor nor any of its
ofTicers. employees, agents or memben shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any bcncnis, workers' compenution
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without (he prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior wrinen
notice and consent of (he State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its ofTiccn and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, iu ofTicert and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against (he Stale, its ofTicers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out offor which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Conoactor. Notwiihsianding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to consiiiuie a waiver of the
sovereign immuniry ofthe State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

(4.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or

•  assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14. I.I comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims ofbodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
ofnot less than Sl.OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000.000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 Special cause ofloss coverage form covering all .
property subject to subparagroph 9.2 herein, in on amount not
less than 80% of (he whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subpsragreph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsemenu approved for use in (he
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanment of
Insurarscc. and issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials ^
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14.3 The Conireciof Sh«ll Tumish to the Contraciing OfTicer
identified in block 1.9. Of hij or her luccessof, • centftc«te(i)
of insurence for all iniurancc required under this Agrtenttnt.
Coniraetof ihall atjo fumijh to the Conlraciing Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, certificated) of
insurance for all rencwal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreemchi r>o later than thirty (39) days prior to the expiration
date ofcMh of the insurance policies. The certificatefs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by rtference. Each certilicaie(s} of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in bfoek 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of eanccllation or modification of the policy.

tS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By sigrting this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
Of exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 2S l 'A
("tyorktrj'Compensalton").

15.7 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requiremenu of N.H. RSA chapter 2tl«A. Contncior shall
moiniain. and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to (his Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Comracling Offieer identified In block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and.are
Incorparaied herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Coniracior. or
any subconiraeior or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Sutc of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Suie to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to il«t Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and oil of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
Shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, In a United
Slates Rest Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks t.2 and 1.4. herein.

18- AMENDMENT. This Agrctnficni may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Such approval is required under the circumUances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shell be construed in accordance with the
laws-of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the bencnt of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used In this Agreement
Is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule ofconstruction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD parties. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties ond-this Agreement shall not be
construed to conlkr any such beneftt.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way Ik held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inicrpreiailon. construction or meaning of the
pavilions of this Agreement.

22. SPECJA L PROVISIONS. Additional provisions Set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are Incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABIUtV. Inihe event any of the provisioniof
this Agreement ore held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be eonirtry to any stale or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force end
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement which may
be exeeuted In a number of counterparts, each of whieh shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and .
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings lelaiing hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire DepBrtment of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences wItHin Domestic VIolehce Crisis Centers

EKhibiiA

Scope of Services

1. Provisions.Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contraclof shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement s© as
to achieve, compliance therewith.

1.3. , For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified .the
Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement. Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES)
are stressful or traumatic experiences. Including abuse, neglect and a range
of dysfunctional events experienced by children from birth through age
eighteen (18) either In a home or community setting, which may include, but
are not limited to;

1.4.1. Having a parent or guardian who Is currently-in jail or has been in jail.

1.4.2. Living with someone who drinks too much alcohol.

1.4.3. Living with someone who uses illegal drugs or abuses prescription
drugs.

1.4.4. Having been verbally abused by a parent or adult in the household.

1.4.5. Having been physically abused by a parent or adult in the household.

1.4.6. Witnessing domestic abuse of parents/adults In household.

1.4.7. Having been sexually abused by an older or stronger family member or
other person outside the family.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall enter into subcontracts with its memljer organizations to
provide evidence-tjased or evidence-informed programs and practices to.
mitigate and prevent the impact of ACES for children utilizing a whole-family
approach.

2.2. The Contractor shall dtstribule funding utilizing the following steps:

2.2.1. Alert membership to the funding that is available.

2.2.2. Request interested members to submit a plan for utilizing available
funding.

New Hxmpshire CoaUlion Aflainsl Eihbit A Conlradof InHials
Oomealic and Sexual ViolBnoe ^.2^1
SS-2020-8DASO5-A0VER Page » of 4 Dale S — •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hunfan Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers

Exhibit A

2.2.3. Review proposed plans from membership organizations.

2.2.4. Determine the level of funding for each plan submitted.

2.2.5. Provide the plans to the Department including the amount of fundlrvg
awarded.

2.2.6. Receive written approval from the Department to proceed with the plan,

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure each member organization provides programs
and services that impact ACES that include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Curricuium{s) for children for social and emotional learning that are
evidenced-based. developmentally appropriate and strength-based.

2.3.2. Currtculums for parents, guardians, and relative caregivers on evidence
based parenting, which may include, but is not limited to:

2.3.2.1. Sober Parenting Journey.

2.3.2.2. Relatively Speaking.

2.3.2.3. Parenting a Second Time Around.

2.3.3. A child advocate, family advocate or adverse childhood experiences
response team (ACERT) advocate.

2.3.4. Partnerships with organizations that serve children and youth, which
may include, but are not limited to:

2.3.4.1. Schools.

2.3.4.2. Boys and Girls Clubs.

2.3.4.3. Family Resource Centers.

2.3.4.4. Other family organizations, as approved by the Department.

2.3.5. Peer support groups for family members.

2.3.6.. Support groups for children as well as their families.

2.3.7. Therapy services for chlUren and youth that are evldenced-base or
evidence-informed.

2.3.8. Services provided by Child Advocacy Centers within New Hampshire,
which may include, but are not limited to:

2.3.8.1. Provide a safe, neutral, and appropriate place for law
,  enforcement to interview children who may have witnessed or

have been victims of crime:

2.3.8.2. Provide a trained court appointed child appointed advocate for
judicial related matters

2.3.8.3. Assist with ensuring children who have witnessed or have

New Mampshirc CooStion Aflatftil \ 6*hibii A Coftuaaor IniUals ^—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers

^  Exhibit A

been victims of crime receive services which will benefit their
development such as nutrition, education, child-care, and
proper parenting/caregiving

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts with member organizations
include mandatory training, as approved by the Department, for all staff who
provide direct services to children and their families. The Contractor shall
ensure staff trainings focus on:

2.4.1. Life experiences and brain development.

2.4.2. Impact of substance use disorders upon families.

2.5. The Contractor shall maintain Certificates of Attendance for staff completing
mandatory trainings and will make the certificates available to the Department
upon request.

3. Reporting and Deliverables

3.1. The Contractor shall:

3.1.1. Ensure member organizations under subcontract are available for on-
site visits conducted by the Department.

3.1.2. Participate in bi-annual site visits conducted by the Department either
in person or by conference call.

3.1.3. Ensure a minimum of one (1) representative per member organization
participates in the Prevention Community of Practice conducted by the
Department on a bi-monthly basis.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department when" the
number of -individuals served by all participating member organizations is
greater than five (5) individuals. The Contractor shall ensure quarterly reports
include, but are not limited to:

3.2.1. Oe-idenlified and aggregate data with no personal health information
(PHI).

3.2.2. Narrative summary of:

3.2.2.1. Progress toward meeting the scope of services in Exhibit A.

3.2.2.2. Challenges encountered in meeting the scope of services in
the previous quarter.

3.2.2.3. Written plan of how to mitigate challenges during the following
quarter.

3.2.3. Aggregate demographic information that includes, but is not limited to:

LiMS
New Hampshire Coaliftor Against Eihlbit A Conlrodor Initials
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers

Exhibit A ;

3.2.3.1. Gender of individuals served.

3.2.3.2. Number of individuals served by range of ages;

3.2.3.2.1. Ages 0 to 4.
3.2.3.2.2. Ages 5 to 8.
3.2.3.2.3. Ages 9 to 11.
3.2.3.2.4. Ages 12 to 14.
3.2.3.2.5. Ages 15 to 17.
3.2.3.2.6. Ages 10 to 20.
3.2.3.2.7. Ages 21 to 29.
3.2.3.2.8. Ages 30 to 54.
3.2.3.2.9. Ages 55 and over.

L/yi%'
New Hsmpshire Coalition Against EitiibitA Cont/acior Initials. *
Domestic and Sexuo'i Violence <2 2 I
SS.2020 BOAS-O5 AOVER Page 4 oI 4 Oaia P ^ t I
Rev.09/D6/ie



OocuSign Envelope ID: 02F475B2-9DO9-46E7-A5S1-D8B05E4S2227

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Chndhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis
Centers

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This agreement Is funded with other funds: 100% Governor's Commission of Alcohol
and other Drugs Alcohol funds.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and future funding. ^ .

4. Payment for said services shall be made on a monthly basis as follovrs:
4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred

in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be for subcontracting costs only.

4.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twenty-first (21»*) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to Initiate payment.

4.4. The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall have appropriate financial policies and procedures in operation to
maintain clear accounting line delineations for appropriations to its member
organizations providing ACES services.

6. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services available for Department review, upon request.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic slgr^ature and emailed
to Jill.Burke@dhhs.nh.g6v. or invoices may be mailed to:

Attention; Jill Burke
Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant Street. fVlain Building
Concord, NH O3301

LilrtS
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis
Centers

Exhibit B
9. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as

Identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the sen/ices
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

11. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties arid may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Ne*» Hampshire Coalition Ag»insl . EjWMB Contradorlni'JXj('^^^
Oomettic ond Sexual Violence ^ Q .2.1
ce.MM.nnA«-M.Anv(:Q Paoe 2o( 2 Data 0 * *SS-202O-BOAS^AOyER Page 2 o< 2

Rev.



DocuSign Envelope 10; 02F475a2-9DO»-46E7-AS51-D8B05E452227

Now Hampshire Deparlment of Hoaith and Human Servtcos
Exhibit C

fiPFfilAL PftQVISIQNS

Contractors Obligations: The Contrecior covertants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used oniy as payment to ihe Contractor for services provided to eiigtbte
indiyiduais ar^. in iho furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby cover>ants and
agrees as follows:

1. Ccmpilance with Federal and SUte Laws: If the Contractor is permined to determine tha eHgibiliiy
of Individuals such oligibilily d^erminalion shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
stale lows, regulaiioos, orders, guidelines, policlea end procedures.

2. Time and Mennor of Delerminatlon: Eligibility determlneUons shati be mode on forms provided by
the Department for that purposa and shall t>e made and remoda at such Umas as are prescribed by
the Department.

y Documentation: In addition to tha determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data fOe on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all,
Informalion rtecessary to support an eiigit>ility determination artd such other information as the .
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department wllh all forms and documentation
regarding eligibinty dclerminations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands thai afl appBcanis for services hereurtder. as wen as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding thai determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thai all aj^icanls for services shall be permlhed to Till out
en application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afalr
hearing in accordance with Oepanmeni regulations.

5. Gratuities or Klckbaclcs: The Contractor agrees that h is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of Ihe Coniractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of Ihis
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract arxl any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofTidals. officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contraclor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or Inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse (he Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for arvy services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be rhade for expenses Incurred by (he Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies (or services or (except as othenvise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determindlion thai the indivldudl is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in ihe Contract, nolhirtg
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable arvf necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the'raie charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third parly
funders for such service. If at any time during the terrfi of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Coniractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excass of such costs or in excess of such rales charged by the Contractor to Ineligible indi.viduals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Rer^otiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Coniractor the amount of any prior reimbursemcni in

excess of costs; i

Ejtfftl C - SpccUl ProUslem CorUisoor irAlab ̂  '

eany>« Ptge I«rS 0«t« f ^



DocuSign Envelope 10:02P47582-9DD9-46E7^51-D8B0SE452227

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Conuactor in which event failure to make
such repayment Shan constitute en Event of Oefauti hereunder. When the Contractor is
permined to determine the eligibility of indhnduals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ot> funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individua) virte is found by the Department to be ineligible for such servicesal
any lime during the period of retention of records estabfished herein.

RECORDS: MAIfTTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

B. fylointenonco of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the follov^ng records during the Contrect Period;

6.1. Fiscal Records: bookt. records, documents and other dote evidencing end reflecting oti cosii
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or colleded by Ihe Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with oceounllng procedures and practices which suffoentJy and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which ere acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, a!) ledgers, books, records, end original eviderKe of cosis such as
purchase reouisilions and orders, vouchers, repuisilions for matcriaJs. inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, tabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of applicationand
eligibility (including ad forms required to determine eliff bliily for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Departrhen) to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. fVledical Records: Where appropriate ar^ as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Conirador shall retairi medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

fi. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Dcpartmeni within 60 days after the dose of the
agency fiscal year, tl is recommended that Ihe report be prepared In eccordance vtrith the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Actrvilies and Funcltons. issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAG standards) as
they pertain to finandal compliarice audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuanlto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

0.2. Audit Liabilites; In adcfilion to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract. I! Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, alt payments made under the
Conuact to which exception has been taken or which have been disaUowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidenilatity of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or codected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be conftdential end shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided hovmver. that pursuant to state favrt and the regulations of
thd Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties end for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written fconsenl of the recipicril, his
attorney or guardian. /WVC
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Notwithstanding anything (o the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal end Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the foilowing reports at the following
times If requested by the Oepartmerrt.
I 'i.l. Inlerim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a dalaiied descriptlonof

all costs and norvaliowabia expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the rep^ end
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by tha Oepartmani to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shaD-be submined on the form
designated by tha Dapartmant or deemed satistactory by (ho Department.

11.2. Final Report: A'tinel report shell be submitted within thirty (30) dsys oher Ihe end of (he term
of this Conlroct. The Fiiul Report shall bs In 6 form setisfactory to the Oopartmeni and shall
contain e summary stetemeni of progress toward goals and objectlvds stated in Ihe Proposal
and other information required by (he Oepanmef>t.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in Ihe Contract and upon payment of tha price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all.the obligations of tho parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of (he Contract ere to be performed after the end of tha term of Ihis Contract and/or
suryve (he termination of the Contract) shaO terminate, provided however, (hat if, upon.revlew of the
Final GxPenditure Report the Department'shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder ihe Department shaD retain the rtgm. at its discretion, lo deduct the amount of such
expenses as ore disalio^^ or to recover such sums from tho Coniraclor.

13. Orbits: Alt documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from (he performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with (he State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or

'  required, e.g., (he United Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownorahlp: AU maierials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS win retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, irtcluding. but not limited lo. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shali not reproduce any maierlais produced urtder the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

tS. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities -
for providing services. Ihe Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and rogulations of federal,
state, county end municipal authorities and Mth any direct'ion of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to taws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of (he services al such facility. If any governmental license or
permit sheD be required for the operation of the said fatiiily or the performance of the said services,
the'Contractor w3l procure said license or permiL and will al all Times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In cortnection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees (hat. during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of (he Slate Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of SSOO.OOO or more. If Ihe redpieni receives 325,000 or more and has SO or

E*WWl C - Speclil Pfw4ilonj Conl/idorIrtlljh(^^|^^__
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more employees It will moirtiain a current EEOP on tte CfxJ submit an EEOP Certif.cation Form to the
OCR certifying that Its 6€0P Is on lite. For recipients receiving loss than $25,000. or puWic grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the reopient wdl provide an
EEOP Ccrtlficallon Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or malnlatn an EEOP. Norv
profit ofganlzalions. Indian Tribes, and medical and educaUonai institutions are exempt from me
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification foiro to me OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms ere available at: httpi/fww^.ojp.usdoj/abouVocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17 Limited Enallsh Proflclency (LEP): As darified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Ar^ss to
■ Services for persons wim Limited Er^glish Proficiency, and resutli^ agency guidance. nalior\alengin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited ̂ "9>'*^^^cloncy (LEP). To^
compliarKe with the Omnibus Crime Conifol and Safe Streets Act of 1988 and Title Vi of the Civil
Rigms Act of 1964. Contractors must lekc feasonable steps to ensure that L6P persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18 Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstieblower Protections; The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currenlty.$150.000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHiSTLEBLOWER RiGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES Of
WHiSTiEBLWVER Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This corrtraci and employees vrorHing on this contract wilt be subject to the vmisUeWower rights
ar^d remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whlstteWower P^®Jfciions estaWshcdel
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the Natior^ai Oelcnsc Authoriialion Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Rub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shaD inform its employees In wrlllng. In the predominant tangu^e of the writforce,
of employee v^histieblowcf rights end protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. os described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in an
subcontracts over the simplified acquisliion threshold

19 Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors v«^th
" greater expertise to perform certain health care services or fundions for effiaency or convenience,
bul the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end accourMabilily tor the functJon(8). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functtonis). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
resoonsiblfiiies ol the subcorxtraetor and provides lor revoking the delegation or imposing sanctrons if
ihe^bcontractor-5 performance Is not adequate. Subcoruractom are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor end the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor comp!iai>ce
vrith those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function , . ^

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities andreporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor s
performance is not adequate .

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on en ongoing basis

Eihtoii C - speciii PfovUiora CofWedof WUrii _Li23-S-
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19.4. Provide to OHMS an annual schedule ideniifylngaDsubcontractors. deieBated functionsand
rospor^ftibUities. and when the subcontractor's performance wUi be reviewed

19.5. OHHS Shell. Qt-its discretion, review and approve ail subconuacts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take correctfva action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Oepadment
to be allowable and rolmtMrsable in accordanea cost ano accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Heafih and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable. shaD mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms regi^red by the Department and containing a description of the services end/or
goods to provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and contflions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cosi end sources of revenue for each aervice to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to efigible indivktuels hereunder. shall
mean that peiiod of time or (hat specified ectlvlly determined by (he Department and specified
in Exhibit 6 of the Contract.

20.9. federal/state LAW: Whetever federal or slate laws, regulations, rvles. orders, end
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shali be deemed to mean
al) such l&wi, regulations, etc. as they may be emended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under thb
Contract wKI not supplant any existing federal funds avoilabta for these services.

ExhWi C - Spedii Prowtstom Cortucw intOili
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REVISIONS TO STANOAHD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions (0 Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Section 4 Condillonal Nati/re of Aoreemenl. is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provtsioo of this Agreement to Ihe contrary, all obligations Of (He State
heretrnder. tncii>ding without limitation, the continuance of payrnenls. In whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriatton or availability of funds.
lr\clud)ng any subsequent changes to iho appropriation or availability of funds offocted by
any state or federal leglslatlve or executive action (hat reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or avallabilty of funding for this Agreement end the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibii A. Scope of Services. In whole or In pan. In no eveni shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds, in
(he event of a reduction, (ermlnailon or modification of opproprlated or available funds, the
Stats shall have the right to wiifthoU payment until such funds become available, If ever.
The Slate shall have the right to reduce, termlnale or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor nollce of such reduction, termination or
modification. Tho State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of tho General ProvisioAs. Account
Number, or eny other account in the event furtds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following lar>gua9e:

10.1 The Stale may lermlrwto Iho Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Conuactor written notice that the Stale is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

lO.Zin (he event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of earfy
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under (he
Agreement, including but r>ot limited to. Wcnllfybig the present end future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The -Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall prompUy provide detailed
information to support (he Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any (nformalion or
data requested by the State related to the termination of (he Agreement and Transition Plan
end Shan provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to tho State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but r>ot limited'to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are (ransllior^d to having services delivered by another
entity Including contracted providers or the Slate, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted deOvery of services in tire Transition Plan.

10.5 Tho Com/actor shall establish a method of notifying cfienls and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall indude the proposed communications in its
Transilion Plan submitted to (he State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agrcemenl for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parlies and approval of (he Governor and Executive Council.

EueuiC-i.Rtvtsloru/EKcepeanstoSisndAdCenUeciUneuaae ContnctsrMUsb UA5
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor WeniWed In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wth the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Onig-Free Worhplace Ad of 1988 (Pub. L. 10(V690. Tille V. Sublille 0:41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's represeniailve. as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the (oilowing CcrHfication:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF. EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certificalion is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 ol the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Sublille 0; 4ru.S.C. 701 el seq.). The J^oary 31.
1889 regulations were amended and puWished as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). arvj require certificalion by gianiecs (arid by inference. sul>-grantecs end sub
contractors). prior to award, thai they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-granlecs and sub-contraclora) that is a State
may elect to moke one certification io the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certlficales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by (he certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon whi^ reliance Is (daced when the agency awards the grant. False
certificalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
terminalion of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmeni. Contractors using this form should
send il to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Healih and Human Services
129 Reasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies lhal it win or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a staiemem notifying employees that the unlav^ul manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is.prohibited in the grantee's
workplace arvJ specifying the actions that w9l be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's poBcy of maWeining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehotrflitotion. end employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse vidatjons

occurnr>g in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a rcqiirement that each employee to be engaged ir> the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the slalemeni required by paragraph (a) that, as e condition of

employment under the granL the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the Statement; end
1.4.2. Notify the cmployef in willing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

slalute occurring in the workplace no later than five caler)dar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in wriling. within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide noHce. including position tille, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity ihe convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EzNM 0 - CenldMllon reswdlng Oivg Pre* Vender —
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numt)er<s} of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the foflo^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
sobparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee wt>o is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to end including

termination, consistent with the requirements of (he Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pahidpate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local healih.
low enforcemerit, or other eppropHote agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effon to continue to maintain a drug*free workplace through
Implemenlation of paragraphs 1.1. f.2, 1.3.1.4. l.S. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the 8lte(s) for the perlormanca of wrork done In
connection with the spedfic grant.

Race of Performance (street address, city, county, state, aip code) (list each location)

Chack □ if there are workplaces on fi le (hat are not identified here.

Dale

Vendor Name: Aj

Name: ScJ^UeM-
->l'r-o:

cuo»ed/ue7i> Pe0e2er2
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CERTlPiCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

TTie Vendor idenUried in Section 1;3 of (he General Provisions agrees to compty with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Resthclions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 13S2, and further agrees to have the Contractor's represeniaOve. as idenlilled In Sectior^s i .11
and 1.12 of (he General Provisions execute the fdtowing Certifrcation:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs OnOicate eppllcobie program covered):
n'emporory Assistfince to Needy Families under Tide IV-A
•Child Suppor1\Enfofcement Program under Tille IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Oevelopmeni Block Grant ui>der TiUe IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congr.ess, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connecllon wilh the swarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loart. or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub^ontraclor).

2. If any funds Other then Federal appropriated funds have been paid or vrill be paid to any person for
influeno'ng or 'aRemptlng to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congrtiy or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection wilh this
Federal contract. gronL loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contrector). the undersigned shall complete ond submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this cenificalion be Included In the award
document for su^awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aO sub-redpients shall certify end disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material represenlation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is o prerequisite for making or entering into this

transaction imposed by Section 1352. Tide 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shaD be subject to o cND penalty of not less than SIO.QOO and not more than $109,000 for
each such falture.

Vendor Name: A/^

Oste Name:
Title:

S t'Kfi / /fi-•y^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor klenlificd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Of^ce of the Preaideni. Executive Orde/12549 and 45 CFR Port 7S regording Debarmeni.
Suspension, end Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor'a
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certificaijon:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing end submitting this proposal (coniract). the prospective primary participant is providing the
cenlflcatlon set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarity result in denial
of participation In this covered t«nsaciion. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit en'
expianation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certlficdtlon or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Heahh and Human Services' (OHMS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certifjcation or an explanation shall disquaCfy such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this dause Is a material representation of fad upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to'enter into this transaction. If U Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
avaiiabie to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shaQ provide immediate wrinen notice to the DHHS agency lo
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submined or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," 'debarred.' 'suspended,' 'Ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'partidpani,' 'person.' 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal.* 'proposal,* and.
'voiuniarily exduded.' as used in this clax/se. have the meanings set out in the Definitions end
Coverega sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached defmitiorts.

6. The prospective primary partidpani agrees by submitting this proposal (coniract) that, should the
proposed covered uansaclion be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into sny lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in tNs.covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal thai it will Indude the
dause titled 'Certification.Regarding Debarmeni. Suspension, ineiigibllity and Voluniary Exduslon -
tower Tier Covered Transactions.* provided by OHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solidtations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A partidpani in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partldpant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended. Inellgide. or invotuniarily exduded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and (requerKy by which it determines the etigibllity of He prindpals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contalr^ed In the foregoing shall be conslnied lo require esiabiishment of a system of records
in order to render in good failh lh« certification required by this dause. The knowledge and

£;dit>a F - Ccniflcailon Regvdno Oeavmert. SuspenjJon Vcfxlor lnHiali/jV\$ .
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information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for irensactions authoriied under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a tower tier covered transaction with a person who is
'suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, In
addition to other rem^ies available to the Federal government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary partidpant certifies to the best of its knovdedge and belief, that It and its
principals:
11.1. ore not presently tfeberred. suspended, proposed for deborment. deeJored Ineligible, or

voiunlarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; ■
11.2. have not willtin a three-year period preceding this proposal (contraa) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment render^ against them for commission of fraud or a crtmtnal offensa in
connection with oblaintng. attempting to obtain, or performing a pubiic (Federal, Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezztement. (heft, forgery, bribery, fatslficalion or destruction of
records, making false siatemenls. or receiving stolen property;

11;3. ore not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or dvllty charged by a governmental entily
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certifrcaiion; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this opplication/proposal had one or more pubiic
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or defaulL

12. Where the prospective primary particlpeni is unable to certify to any of the statements in Vtis
certification, sudi prospective partidpant shall aQach an exdanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By sighing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant. as

defined In 4S CFR Part 76. certifies to the best ol its knoiMedge and belief that it and its prindpats:
13.1. are not presently detiarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. dedared ineligible, or

votuntariJy exduded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or ogeiKy.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier partidpant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective partidpant shall attach an explanation to Ihls proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting (his proposal (contract) (hat it wID
indude this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Inetigibilily. end.
Voluntary Exclusion - Lovrer Tier Covered Transactions.' without m^ification in all lower tier covered
(ransodions and in all sdidtations lor lower tier covered transactions.

Ve^orName:/\y Co &/, -h)^

Date Name: s va
Title: ,

Erf4baF-CeiWcit)onResnrtlnQOrt#mi«nl.Su»peAllon Vendw WUah,
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
PPHPRAL NONOISCRIMINATtON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and l .12 of ihe General Provisions, to execute ihe following
certification:

vendor win comply, end will require eny subgrentees or subcontrecloro to comply, with any applicable •
federal nor^iscdminelloo requirements, which may include:

.  the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act 071968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohlWls
recipients of federal funding under iNs statute from discriminating, either In employmeni practices or In
the deUvery of services or benefits, on Ihe basis of race, color, reii^on. national origin, end sex. The Aa
requires certain redpicnis to produce an Equal Employment Opportunlly Plan;
. the Juver^lo Justice Delinquertcy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 tJ.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
reference the dvil rights obtigoiions of the Safe Strecis Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from dJscdminaUng. cither In employment practices or In the delivery of services or
berwfits. on.iho basis of race, color, religion, natiortai origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

. t^ Chm Rights Act of 19S4 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, wtiich prohitills recipients of federal financial
assistance from dischmlnaling on the basis ol race, color, or national origin in any program or activity):

. the Rehabilitation Ad of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sedion 794). which prohibits redpienls of Federal financial
essislance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employmeni and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or adivity;

• the Americans with OisabiBties Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sedions 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabllilias In employment. State and local
govemmenl services, public accommodations, commercial facililiai. and transportalion;
- the'Education Amer>dmenis of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1665-86), which prohibits
discrimlnailon on Ihe basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). prohibits discrimination on Ihe
basis of age In programs or adivilies receiving Federal financial assistance. II does not Irtclude
employmeni discrimination;

- 26 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Gram Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - NondiscrimmaUon; Equal Employment Opportunily; Poficies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal prelection of the laws for faith-based and community
orgDnizafions); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships wth faith-based and neighborhood crganUallons:

• 26 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. OepertmcAi of Justice Regutallor\s - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations)' and WhistleWower protections 4i U.S.C. §47i2 and The National Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) me Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contrad Employee Whistlebiowcr Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The ccrtlficale set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certiflcalion or vlolallon of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmeni.

Vendor MtUb
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In ihe event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a rmding of
diseriiTilnatiott efier a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a reciptenl of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the appiica&le contracting agency or division within the Department of Health artd Human Servicas. and
to Ihe Department of Health artd Human Seivices Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identlTied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foUowtng
certificatJor;

I. By Slgnlrtg arxl suOmlning this proposal (contract) the \/er>dor agrees to cornply with the provisions
lr>d*cated above.

VendofName: A/^ ̂ tn/.'AtVN

2.1. 1^

M. 7Sc,hlietF^ ■Date Nome.
Title: . 7 ^ • i

ExhWlC 1/^
Vendor WliStS

arn.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Pot>lic tew 103'227. Port C • Envbonmenlal Toboao Smohe, else known os the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act) requires that smokir>g not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
convectcd for by en entity end used routinely or rcguiarty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or Dbrery services to crttdrcn under the e^e of 18. tf the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govenynenls. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences. fodBiles funded soieiy by
Medicare or Medicaid hjnds. end portions of fadBties used for inpailent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a dvll monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an odminisirstlvo compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor Wenlified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idcnllCed In Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlTication:

1  0y signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
alt applicable provlsiof^s of Public Lew 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Veftdor Name: /V Co ̂  I'

Date tS"

(01 r^kr^fo-*^

cuOMntoru ^*9* ̂  '

EjdVWi H - CertliMOon Re^ofOlno Vendor Wtielj
gnvtronmerlslTobsccoSmoke Q* ̂<0 I
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILtTY '

ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE
AGREEMENT

The Vendor ideniified in Section i.3 ot the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Piivacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

<j. 'Desionaied Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AoareQation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Qoefations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clintcal Health
Act. TllleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HiPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. '^dividual* shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall indude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Slandards for Privacy of Individually Idenlifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Heaim Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
informalion' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, Hmiled to the information created or recervcd by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered.Entity.

VTOU Crfftiill Vnvlaf IrJiUli
Hctllh lASurcnce PortaWtty Ad
evsineu Aasodate Aereament & Q ] »Oi
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I. 'Reouired bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "SecuriN Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpari C. and amendments thereto.-

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information* meons protected health informalion that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • AD terms not Otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informatior).

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, o^icers. employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered.

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances frorh the third party that such PHI will be held confidentiaDy and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose lof which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent H has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in respbhse to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and

.to seek appropriate relief.' If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

V3014 EKfliftl Vendor IndUib
Hoftiih lAiunnoi Poftsbony Ad
Butlntl* Attodtie AgrtCffltnt
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Associate shatl refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional resthctions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shaD not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions ar>d shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

P) ■ ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health inforrriatlon and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above siiualions. Thie risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was ma^e;

0 Whether the protected heatlh information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessn^nt in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require ail of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and cor^itions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assoctale
agreements with Contractor's intended busirvess associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Etftfti'lt Vendor
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pursuant to this Agreemenl, with rights of enforcement and indemnificatiort from such.
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph d13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Wthln five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, potides and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PH) to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity; or as direded by Covered Entity, to an indlNnduai in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a rec^ about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to futfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and infor^tion related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accountir^ of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section'
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such infpmidtion as Covered Entity may require to fulfiD its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHi
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response.as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, an PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreerrient, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PH) has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreemenl, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

V20t4 Vendof WUih ^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity. In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that Ihe PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitdtion(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreemenl, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Enlily has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the slandard terms and conditions (P«37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreemenl upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the A9reenf>ent or provide an oppoduriity for Business Associate to cure Ihe
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definiilons and RgQulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assodaie agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreemenl, from time to lime as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and stale law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges thai it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement .shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. _
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HeiBn Instnnce rorttWvy AO ^ ^
BuSiTMU AtMdlltAervcmtni 0 ' ZJ • i i

Pige 5 ol 6 E>«t4 •



DocuSIgn Envelope 10; 02F47S82-9DO9-46E7^5l-O8B05E452227

New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

EahibM i

SgareQaiibn. If any term or condition of (his Exhibit I or the application (hereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end (he
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return gr
destruction of PHI. extensions of (he protections of (he Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms end conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Deparlmeni of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Y^\
«lame oTAeName oTAethorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of the Vendor

Signature of Aulhori^ Representative

Lyn M. //e./-/"
Name of Authorized Representative

^  OtrCiC={ro^
Title of Aulhorized Representative

Date

vtou EtfVbai
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rPRTlPICATION REGAROINO THE FEDERAL PUMPING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPUA^

The Federal Funding Accounlabtlily end Transparency Ad (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $2S.OOO and awarded on or after Odober 1.2010. to report on
data related to executive compensalieo and assodaled ftfst-tier suVgrents of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant mocSrications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In Dccordance with 2 CFR Port 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Informab'on). the
Dopartmcni of Health ond Humon Senrices (OHHS) must report the following Information for any
sutiaward or contrad award subjed to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of oward
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for conirads / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of (he funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Prfndple place of performance
9. Unique ideniifier of the entity (DUNS d)
to. Total compensation ond names of (he top five executives if:
' 10.1. More than of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already availat>te through reporting to the SEC.

Prime gram recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
(he award or award amendment Is made.

The Vendor Identified in Sedion 1.3 of the Generoi Provisions agrees to comply with (he provisions of
The Federal Fundir>9 Accountability and Transparency Ad. Public Law 109>2d2 and Public Law 110*252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), end further agrees
to have (he Contractor's representative, as idenliftedin Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the loitowing Certification:
The below named Ver>dor agrees to provide needed informalion as outlined et>ove to the NH Department
of Health end Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Ad.

Vendor Name: A/A/ ^<2

§ic.}c.oct,l

y-2'- /q
Dale ' Name: ^ ^

Title:

erfftilJ-CertncjJJmRegflftfnfliXeFweftlFuntflfto Vendor «/«5«b

cuo«cs/iton>
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FORMA

As the Vendor Idenlified In Sect>on 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify (hat the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Thit PDNS number for youf entity is:

2. In your business or organization's precedng completed Tisce) year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^grants. and/or cooperative ogreements; and (2) S2S.000.000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S.. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative ogreements?

YESNO

If the answer to b2 ot>ove is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to mformalion about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through pertodic reports filed under section 13(d) or lS(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of.l934 (tS U.5.C.7Sm(e), 760(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES, stop here

if the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensaled officers in your business or
organization are as foSows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuo*crMB7i3

J • CcnntcUort RcgvCtno the Frdtr^ Funding
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QHHS Information Security Requirements

As. Definitions

The following terms may be reftecled and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situalior>s where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
information.' Breach* shad have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) Of NISI Publication 600-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Inlormation' or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, fioanciat. public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Informallon and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heallh and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but .is not limited to
Protected Health information (PHI), Personal Informallon (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCt), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End .User* means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivalive data in accordance with the terms of thisContract.

5. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potenlially violates an explicit of implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Indude the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misptacement of hardcopy documents, and misroutrng of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have (he poiential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modificdtion or destruction.

7. 'Open Wrcless Network' means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transm'ission of unencrypted PI. PPI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Irrformation' (or 'PI*) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individuars identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359X:19. blomet/ic records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a speciftc individual, such as dale .and place of birth, mother's ma'iden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identinabie Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under H1PAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided in (he
definiiion of "Protected Health Information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Prolected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. arid amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected-Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization (hat Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of ConfKfential information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Inforrnalion
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited tp all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmil.PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any CoofKlentiai Inforrnalion in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis (hat it is required by law. in response to a
subpoerta. etc...without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PH)
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspe^ing to confirm compliance with the terms of (his
Contract.

It. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSf^lSSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containtr)g
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyt>er security and that said
applica.tion's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Oisks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portat)le storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. Erxl User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrvoled ar^ being sent to and being received by email addresses of
perspns authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site most be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharirtg Sites. End User may not use file
hostir>g services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confrdential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-prctected.

B. Open VMreless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. Er\d User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmittirig via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
instailed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information vrilt be
trar^mitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also kr»own as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
EfKl User Is employirtg an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders, and sub-folders used for transmitting Confldential Data wdl

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting ConFidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

111. RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the" Conlraclor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for tis Er^d
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

■ 5. The Contractor agrees Confidenilal Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAf^P/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anii-spyware. and anli-mahvare utiBties. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive inlruslorv-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees lo and ensures Hs complete cooperation wiih the State's
. Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulr>erability of the hosting
infraslructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor. wiD maintain any Confidential information on Its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certificalion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitUation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NlST Special Publication 800-68. Rev 1, Gutdelir^es
for Media Sanltizatlon. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data dcstAJCtlon. and will provide written cerTificalioh to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include ell details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and vaUdated. Where applicable,
r^ulalory and professional slar^dards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, wiihin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all eleclronic Confidenlial Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures lo protect Department
corifidenllal Information throughout the Information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepaitnient .confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department conftdentia) Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-conlracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or ^ocesses that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match (hose for the Contractor, including breach notrfication requirements.

7. The Contractor will worV with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Slate of Hampshire and Department system access end authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
oblalning and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
compieled and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor wiQ execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance wilh the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will worV wilh the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the (Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will'be completed
annually, or an alternate lime frame at the (Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement behveen the Department ar>d the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outsxle the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express vwitten consent is obtained from the Information Security Office

'  teadershlp member vnthin the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, indudlng but not Gmited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with aO applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy ar>d security of Conridenilai Information, and must In all other respe^s
mflintsin the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the love! arxd acope of roQuirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). OHMS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conftdentiaiity of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hltps://www.nh.9ov/doilfvcndor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating tover>dors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
respond process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire networt.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Conndential Data obtained under (his
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Oaia to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Conlractor must ensure thai all End Users;

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at alt times.

c. ensure (hat laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. a
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if cncrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limii disclosure of the Confidenlial infoimation to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conndenliat Information received under this Contract and individuaily
identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blometdc Idenliners. etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conrrdentiat Data. Includir>g any
derivative files containing personally tdentifiable informalion. and in ail cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times wt\en In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confideniial Data must be maintained, used ar^
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not-be
shared with anyone. End Users wiD keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is resporxsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHMS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data'
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immedlatety. at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle end report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented IrKident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance vrith 42 C.F.R.'§§ 431.300 • 306. in addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personalty identifiable information Is involved in incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notificallon methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

tr>cidenis and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPfiva cyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

OHHSInfofmationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh,gov
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